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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia

Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year

ended 31 March 2017.

On 11 October 2013, the Company was spun-off from Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia"”) and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) by way of introduction.

On 2 March 2017, the shares held by Hua Xia has been
distributed by Hua Xia to its shareholders. Since then, the

Company is no longer the subsidiary of Hua Xia.

RESULT FOR THE YEAR

The Group continued to focus on pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). This year, the Group
has a new business which provides hemodialysis treatment and

consultancy service.

Total revenue of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$985.909 million, representing a decrease of approximately
25.41% over last year. The gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$126.269 million. The loss for the year
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$25.792 million.

Total revenue generated from pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$728.805 million, representing a decrease of

approximately 32.73% as compared to 2016.

Management’s Statement
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Management’s Statement
EEERS

The revenue contributed by the pharmaceutical retail chain
business through Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain
Company Limited* (R 2B H IR EBHERETE AT ) which
was under the brand name “Huihao Sihai”. for the year ended 31
March 2017 was approximately HK$257.035 million, representing

an increase of approximately 7.81% as compared to 2016.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Since the implementation of New Good Supply Practice (“New
GSP"), market rivals have reduced, but meanwhile, customers
of the Group have also reduced accordingly. Owing to the
uncertainty as to which scenario will have more effects on the
Group, thus, we seek to hire more staff to secure more market
shares on the one hand, and cut unnecessary spending and
increase gross profits to supplement the decrease in revenue
resulted from loss of customer on the other hand, and thereby
observing the market reactions and how to impact on market
share of the Group. Unfortunately, turnover generated from
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business is still
declined, resulting in an increase in loss attributable to owners of

the Company.

The impact of the New GSP has appeared one after another, in
which the Group will make a response and policy adjustment as
a result of the impacts seen, it is hoped to take advantage of
the benefits from that in August 2014, Fujian Food and Drug
Administration (B ZERMEMEEE®EF) announced the
operating subsidiary of the Group, namely Fujian Province Fuzhou
City Huihao Pharmaceutical Company Limited* (fB#2 & &M
BEFBEESMRAT), was one of 10 companies which has been
permitted to conduct the business in the distribution to public
hospitals and public healthcare institutions after 2016. The Group
believes that with the pharmaceutical market consolidation has
continued at national and local level, it is expected to provide
opportunities for companies with large scale operations like the

Group.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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The management of the Group has realised that the New GSP
is a challenge as well as a potential opportunities for the Group
to continue to address the needs of the market and the public

through refined services and quality products.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management team and staff for their tireless
dedicated that helps fuel the Group’s healthy development. In
addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their continuous support. We will
continue to devote unwavering efforts to reap promising returns

for all parties.

Chen Jinshan

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 June 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENRR DM

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended

31 March 2017 is as follows:

o Total revenue was approximately HK$985.909 million

(2016: approximately HK$1,321.763 million), representing

approximately 25.41% of decrease over 2016.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$126.269 million
(2016: approximately HK$146.128 million), representing

approximately 13.59% of decrease over 2016.

o The loss from operations was approximately HK$9.934

million (2016: profit from operations of approximately

HK$4.061 million).

o Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company

was approximately HK$25.792 million (2016: approximately

HK$13.802 million).

o The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$93.721 million as at 31 March 2017

(2016: approximately HK$203.500 million).

o The board does not recommend the payment of a final

dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group continues to focus on pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the PRC. This year, the Group has a new business which provides
hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service.

Revenue

Looking back at 2016/17, the Group's revenue experienced a
decrease. For the year ended 31 March 2017, Total revenue
for the Group was approximately HK$985.909 million (2016:
approximately HK$1,321.763 million), accounting for a decrease
of approximately 25.41% over last year. The gross profit margin of
the Group was approximately 12.81%, while it was approximately
11.06% in 2016.

Segment information

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution
business, (2) pharmaceutical retail chain business and (3)
hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service business in PRC.
Financial information in respect of these operation is presented in
Note 7 to the consolidated financial statement.

Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business
The Group has a large and broad customer base through our
distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. The Group
distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers located
principally in the Fujian Province and also sells pharmaceutical
products in neighboring provinces such as Guangdong, Hunan,
Hubei, Jiangxi, Aunhui and Zhejiang. Our customers can be
categorised into three types namely hospitals and healthcare
institutions, distributor customers and end customers such
as companies operating pharmaceutical retail chain stores,
independent pharmacies, and outpatient departments of
community hospitals, healthcare service stations and clinics.
The revenue generated from the pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business amounted to approximately HK$728.805
million (2016: approximately HK$1,083.341 million), this i)
represented approximately 32.73% of decrease over 2016 and
ii) accounted for approximately 73.92% of the Group’s revenue.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the reduction in sales to
distributor customers due to the stringent regulations after the
promulgation and implementation of the New GSP.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEHEENBR DM

Pharmaceutical retail chain business

The Group operates pharmaceutical retail chain business through
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited* (&
BEFINSEEEHEEGREE A A) which was accounted for
as one of our subsidiaries. The Group offers a wide variety of
products in our retail pharmacies including prescription medicines,
over-the-counter medicines, healthcare food products, traditional
Chinese medicines, medical supplies and medical devices. As
at 31 March 2017, 120 (2016:

operated. The Group seeks to introduce new products and services

117) retail pharmacies were

to meet changing customer preferences and to differentiate
the Group from our competitors. The revenue generated from
pharmaceutical retail chain business amounted to approximately
HK$257.035 million (2016: approximately HK$238.422 million),

representing approximately 7.81% of increase over 2016.

Hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business

In January 2017, the Group acquired a new business which
provides hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service. As the
completion of the acquisition of this business was in March 2017
which is less than a month to the year ended date. Therefore, the

contribution to the Group for the year is limited.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including sundry income, interest income
and rental income amounted to approximately HK$3.582 million
(2016: approximately HK$5.000 million) for the year ended 31
March 2017.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2017, selling and distribution
expenses amounted to approximately HK$95.226 million (2016:
approximately HK$100.466 million), representing a decrease of

approximately 5.22% over the last year.
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* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2017
amounted to approximately HK$45.223 million (2016:
approximately HK$48.359 million), representing a decrease of

approximately 6.48% over last year.

The decrease in the selling and distribution expenses and the
administration expenses was due to the decrease in the turnover

of the Group.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the finance costs of the Group
were approximately HK$14.441 million (2016: approximately
HK$16.365 million), representing a decrease of approximately

11.76% over the last year.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

The Group had loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$25.792 million for the year ended
31 March 2017 (2016: HK$13.802 million).

The increase in loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company was due to the decrease in the turnover of
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business as the effect

of the implementation of the New GSP.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$93.721 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$203.500 million). The Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$392.108 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$609.526 million) and total current liabilities of
approximately HK$322.555 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$278.444 million). The current ratio of the
Group, calculated by dividing the current assets by the current
liabilities, was approximately 1.216 as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
approximately 2.189).

BEEENRR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENBR DM

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio which was
calculated based on outstanding debts (comprising bank
borrowings and convertible notes) less cash and cash equivalents
over total equity (including all capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company) was approximately 26.04% (2016: not
applicable as the Group’s outstanding debts were less than its

cash and cash equivalents and resulted a net cash).

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had bank borrowings
outstanding balances and bill payables of approximately
HK$59.342 million and HK$21.557 million respectively. The
Group's pledged bank deposits, prepaid lease payments and
investment property of approximately HK$10.156 million,
HK$9.664 million and HK$6.766 million respectively, were pledged
as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 24 January 2017, Fujian Rui Mai Trading Company
Limited” ({RESIBE S HER AT ), a directly wholly-owned by
Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Fuzhou Huihao")' (BEEE M T EFEEXERA
&) which was indirectly owned as to 78.14% by the Company,
acquired Mingxi County Trading Company Limited” ( B8 )% &
EH#HB ZHMRAQF) (the “"Target Group”) at a consideration
of RMB125,000,000 (approximately HK$140,954,000). The
Target Group is principally engaged in providing hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service through jointly-operated and
self-operated hemodialysis treatment centers and trading of

hemodialysis treatment consumables and equipment in the PRC.

On 21 February 2017, Fuzhou Huihao disposed a non-wholly
owned subsidiary, namely Huihao Pharmaceutical (Nanping)
Company Limited” (B8 % (B8 ) BBRA ) at consideration of
RMB8,378,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,689,000).

#English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other than this, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during

the year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
On 14 May 2015,

agreement with the placing agent pursuant to which the

the Company entered into the placing

Company has conditionally agreed to place, through the placing
agent, on a best efforts basis, the convertible notes with principal
amounts aggregating up to HK$84,292,000 to the placees at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.65 per conversion share (“the
Placing”). Based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.65
per conversion share, a total of 129,680,000 conversion shares
will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the convertible notes in full. The Placing was
completed on 1 June 2015. Up to 31 March 2017, there was no

convertible notes converted into the conversion shares.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Company signed the
deeds of amendment with all the holders of the convertible
notes to extend the maturity date of the convertible notes to 30
November 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$6.484 million representing
648,405,300 ordinary shares (2016: 648,405,300 ordinary shares).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had no material capital

commitments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENRR DM

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 1,112 (2016: 1,137) full
time employees (including directors) as shown in the following
table:

& 8 B & 8l B 3%
R-ZE—tF=A=+—H £KEEEEF1,112
B(ZE—RF:1,137R) 2 BEE (BFEE
E) FBERTXR:

Number of staff

Location th B BEIASE
Hong Kong &8 8
PRC M 1,104

For the year ended 31 March 2017, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$90.034 million
(2016: approximately HK$73.925 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include
the contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
discretionary bonus and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and
basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work
injury insurance and unemployment insurance to the employees in
the PRC.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The following is the key risk and uncertainty
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could

turn out to be material in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Market Risks

PRC government policy

In August 2014, Fujian Food and Drug Administration? (&
EEEAEREREEEERE) announced a New GSP that only
qualified companies are permitted to conduct the business in the
distribution to public hospitals and public healthcare institutions
after 2016, there is no assurance that the PRC government will

not legislate new policies in the future to towards the industry.

Operational risks

Under the New GSP, although one of the non-wholly owned
subsidiaries, namely Fujian Province Funzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Company Limited* (BEBEBM T BT HEEER
Ad|]) is on the list, it is unable to cater for all the market shares
on distribution sale business which are covered by those previous
distributor customers due to the constraint of the existing direct

sale distribution facilities of the group.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the directors consider that the

Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be minimal.

Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EERGREEAEBRHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Jinshan (“Mr. Chen”), aged 49, holds a bachelor
degree in finance and accounting. Mr. Chen has over 17 years
of accounting experience and had also been a project manager
for more than 7 years in an accounting firm. Mr. Chen was the
executive director of Hua Xia, the shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange for the period from 25 April 2006 to
10 October 2014.

Ms. Yung Ka Lai (“Ms. Yung”), aged 30, obtained her Bachelor
degree of Science Business Management, Specialization in
Marketing from SUNY-Stony Brook University, United States. She
has 4 years of managerial experience in marketing. Ms. Yung
was the substantial shareholder of the Company before 2 March
2017 due to the fact that she is the sister of Mr. Yung Ka Chun
who is the substantial shareholder of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8143).

Mr. Chiu King Yan (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 40, obtained his
bachelor’s degree in business administration (Honours) in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 1999
and a master’s degree of science in financial analysis from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2012. He
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered

Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chiu has over 15 years of experience in audit, accounting,
private equity investment and corporate finance, obtained from
his previous working experiences in international accounting
firms and various listed companies in Hong Kong. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chiu was the group chief financial officer of AID
Partners Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known as AID
Partners Capital Holdings Limited (stock code: 8088), responsible
for financial reporting, investment management and mergers and

acquisitions.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (“Mr. Wong”), aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wong is also the
independent non-executive director of Smart-Core Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2166) since October 2016. He was also a non-executive director
of Shaanxi Northwest New Technology Industry Company Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8258) from
September 2012 to August 2014.

Mr. Wong has over 15 years of experience in the corporate finance
industry. He has held various positions, including chief financial
officer, director and company secretary in different companies
in Hong Kong, where he has experience in handling corporate
finance transactions such as mergers and acquisitions, capital fund
raising and restructuring. Mr. Wong was appointed as a Director
of Orient Victory Azure Capital Limited since January 2017
where he was responsible supervising type-6 regulated activities
under SFO including corporate finance, internal control and risk
management. He was also responsible for overseeing the daily

operations of the said company.

Mr. Wong obtained a Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong
Shue Yan University in July 1991. Mr. Wong currently is a Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is the member of Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EERGREEAEBRHE

Dr. Liu Yongping (“Dr. Liu”), aged 61, is a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong and a consultant of a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong. Dr. Liu has more than 20 years of experience in the capital
market and merger and acquisition legal services sector. Dr. Liu
graduated from the University of London with a master’s degree
in law in 1987 and from the University of Oxford with a doctor’s
degree in philosophy in 1994. Apart from his appointment with
the Company, Dr. Liu has been acting as an independent non-
executive director of Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock code: 629), since June
2010. Dr. Liu has also been acting as an independent non-
executive director of China Forestry Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 930),
from September 2012 to June 2015. Save as disclosed above, Dr.
Liu did not hold any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong

Kong or overseas in the last three years.

Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie (“Mr. Fok"), aged 49, was appointed
as the independent non-executive director on 24 March 2017.
Mr. Fok is currently the company secretary and the authorised
representative of China Fortune Holdings Limited (stock code:
110) and an independent non-executive director of Daging Dairy
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1007), both companies whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Fok graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor degree of Science in Engineering and the University of
Wolverhampton with a bachelor degree of laws and is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Fok has over 10 years of practical experience in accounting,
finance and corporate management of both listed and unlisted

companies in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. Xiang Zheng (“Ms. Xiang”), aged 55, is the General
Manager of Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited* (BB BM M EFEEBR A F) ("Fuzhou
Huihao”). Ms. Xiang was graduated from The Open University of
Fujian® (B2 EE SR K2 ) majoring in Business Administration,
and has more than 22 years of operational management
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Ms. Xiang joined
our Group in December 2008. Prior to joining our Group,
Ms. Xiang worked in Fujian Sanming Medicine Shareholding
Company Limited" (RE=ZHEEZRMHERAT),

owned pharmaceutical enterprise in Sanming from 1992 to 2008,

a state-

where she served as salesperson, manager of pharmaceutical
department, manager of medical devices department and vice
general manager, and was mainly responsible for managing the

sales business.

Mr. Luo Xintian (“Mr. Luo”), aged 50, is the General Manager
of Fujian Huiming Medicine Company Limited* ({83 & S A7 &
#ZHPRAF) (“Fujian Huiming”). Mr. Luo was graduated from
Fujian Pharmaceutical School Adult Technical College* ( 182 &8 %
ER M AHRE) majoring in Chinese Medicine, and has more than
26 years of managerial experience in the sales of pharmaceutical
products. Mr. Luo joined our Group in November 2008, and has
been the general manager of Fujian Huiming since April 2012.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Luo worked in several state-owned
pharmaceutical enterprises in Ninghua County, Jianning County
and Sanming City in Fujian Province since 1987 as salesman,
deputy manager in procurement department, deputy manager in
sales department, assistant to general manager and he was mainly
responsible for the management of the procurement and sales of

pharmaceutical products.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EERGREEAEBRHE

Mr. Chen Bing (“Mr. B. Chen"), aged 46, is the General Manager
of Putian Huihao Medicine Company Limited* ({B#2 % A E F B& %
BBR2AF) (“Putian Huihao”). Mr. B. Chen was graduated from
Northwest College for Nationalities* (784t R H& 2 F%) majoring
in Business Enterprise Marketing, and has extensive operational
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
B. Chen joined our Group in December 2008. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. B. Chen worked in Zhangzhou Biochemistry
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited* GEM A ¥t BRIz E
BPR/AT]) as the sales director from 2006 to 2007, responsible for

managing the national sales business in the PRC.

Mr. Xu Jiwang (“Mr. Xu”), aged 43, is the General Manager of
Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Company Limited* (7B %E (R
M) B PR 2 F) (“Quanzhou Huihao”).
from Southwest Jiaotong University* (78 E X 38 K B2 ) specialising

Mr. Xu was graduated

in Business Administration and has extensive operational
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Xu
joined our Group in January 2011. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Xu worked in Fujian Province Pharmaceutical Limited Liability
Company* (BREZBEBEABREME 2 F) from August 1994 to
November 2010, and served as the sales manager of the company,

responsible for managing the sales of pharmaceutical products.

Mr. Liu Zhao Liang (“Mr. Z. Liu’), aged 43, is the General
Manager of Huihao Pharmaceutical (Nanping) Company
Limited* (S48 % (B ) BR AT ) . Mr. Z. Liu was graduated
from Jilin University (F# K2 ) majoring in Economies and has
approximately 23 years operational management experience in
the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Z. Liu joined our Group since
September 2014.

#English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

Mr. Chen Kaiping (“Mr. K. Chen"”), aged 54, is the assistant to
General Manager of Fuzhou Huihao and he is responsible for the
quality control of the company. Mr. K. Chen was graduated from
Fujian Province Pharmaceutical School* (fEZ&EEBEEER ), and
is a qualified pharmacist. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. K. Chen
worked as manager of the quality control department in FHP
Chain and as deputy director of the quality control department
in FHP Company during the period from September 2003 to April
2008 and he was responsible for supervising the quality control of

pharmaceutical products.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Wai Wa (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 56, has been appointed
as the Company Secretary with effect from 30 September
2014. Mr. Tsang is a holder of a Bachelor degree in Finance and
Accounting and a Master degree in Business Administration. He
is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 30 years
of professional experience in auditing, accounting, company

secretary and corporate finance.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only
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Governance Report
BERABRESE

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to implementing policies
and measures in our daily business operations to foster reduction
of the Group’s environmental impact. Detail information regarding
the environmental, social and governance practices adopted by
the Group is set out in the environmental, social and governance
report which will be disclosed in a separate report and published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company no later

than three months after the publication of this annual report.

Environmental protection

The Group is committed to environmental protection and
energy conservation. In the course of investment, construction
and operation, the Group has consistently carried out the
operation objective of “Benefiting the society and the populace”
and focused on sustainable development. With speediness,
reliability, precision and safety as its objective, the Group
possesses advanced logistics equipment, warehousing facility
and modernised ERP system, and is equipped with electronic
tag, RF picking, tray storage and other modern equipment for its
operation. The Group also introduced advanced IT programme
management and technical support of modern information
network and strived to facilitate paperless office and old stuff

reuse.

Relationship with suppliers

While focusing on its self-development, the Group is also in
pursuit of mutual advancement with its business partners.
With the further implementation of new industrial policies, the
cooperation between each party of the pharmaceutical supply
chain is becoming increasingly closer. Interest-binding promotes
the formation of strategic cooperation and alliance. We firmly
believe that partners are the most reliable resources of the Group
and that the development of the Group cannot be separated from

that of its partners.
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With career platform as its foundation and in the principle of
sincere cooperation and mutual benefits, the Group gained
the recognition and favour of suppliers with its quality
merchandise and good services. It aims at realizing common value
enhancement, common interests and a win-win situation of the

parties.

The Group established a long-term stable partnership with
large and medium pharmaceutical manufacturers and suppliers
in provinces and cities nationwide, with tens of thousands of

cooperative varieties.

Customer service

The Group pays high attention to customer service quality and
standard. The Group always takes “Provide customers with
professional services, increase social wealth, facilitate common
development among corporation partners and us under equitable
relationship” as values to promote its business development. We
are customer-oriented, fully observe and study customer needs,
and constantly adjust products and business models to improve
service quality. The entities under the Group have established a
comprehensive customer management system. By increasing the
frequency of visits to customers and strengthening communication
with customers, feedback from customers can be obtained in a
timely fashion, thereby achieving higher standard of customer

services.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group fully complies with all laws and regulations and
regularly monitors and gathers information about changes in
laws, rules and regulations relevant to the Group’s businesses to
ensure the Group's observance of those applicable laws, rules and
regulations, especially those which may have material impact on
the Group.

Governance Report
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Governance Report
BEABRESE

The Group has been actively promoting policies for the prevention
of legal risks, and the engagement of legal advisors and
deepening the building of a system for in-house legal workflow
is to consolidate its capability of compliance and corporate
governance. The Group complies with the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and Quality Administration Practice for

Pharmaceutical Operation to operate its businesses.

Staff

It has always been the Group's firm belief that staff is the most
valuable resources and wealth of enterprise development. We
respect and protect the interest of every staff, develop a good
working environment for staff growth, adhere to our belief in
“People-oriented, provide an equitable and open environment
for talents to compete”, provide staff with a sound development
channel with ample training, care about staff's livelihood and
support them to achieve their self-values. We strictly comply
with the laws and regulations of Labour Contract Law, advocate
staff equality and diversity, implement market competitive
remuneration and benefit system, concern about staff's
occupational health and safety, and established a comprehensive
labour relationship management system. Under the objectives of
open communication, norm transparency and win-win mutual
benefits, we established a mutual-reliance relationship with
staff to jointly promote the enterprise’s continuous and health

development.

Policy on remuneration and benefit

As of 31 March 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries employed
a total of 1,112 employees. The Group has established a
comprehensive management system of remuneration, motivation
and performance appraisal. Salary is commensurate with
employees’ position value, competence and performance and with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Staff performance
is assessed in an appropriate manner and the outcome of which
will be reflected in remuneration and promotion. The Group
holds the health and well-being of its employees in high regard
by providing them with benefits in kind such as provident fund,
medical insurance, social pension insurance, education allowances

and training programmes.
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Development and training

The Group puts a strong emphasis on the recruitment and
nurturing of talents. During 2016, the Group stepped up the
recruitment of management personnel and professionals in the
logistics sector based on its development strategies and business
development requirements, in a bid to strengthen its management
and professional teams and optimise its staff mix. The Group also
places a strong emphasis on the training and appointment of
internal staff, whereby crucial employees who deliver outstanding
performance at work and show potential for development are

promoted to key positions of the Group.

The Group places a strong emphasis on staff training, and
encourages staff to enhance their abilities through continuous
training by the participation in various development and training
programmes to be provided by the Group on a yearly basis, so
as to build a high-calibre team of management personnel and

professionals compatible with the Group's business development.

The Group has compiled a staff manual and distributed to its
staff. The staff manual sets out the development history, structure,
future planning and corporate culture of the Group as well as the

conduct, rights and benefits of the staff.

Safety and health

The Group is always committed to providing a safe, efficient
and comfortable workplace for its staff. Through rational
arrangements, training and guidelines as well as the provision
of physical check-ups and education on occupational health, the
Group strives to ensure good health of its staff and provide a

good working environment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) acknowledges

the need and importance of corporate governance as one of the
key elements in creating shareholders’ value. The Company is also
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance
that can properly protect and promote the interests of all
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability of

the Company.

The Company strived to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code") as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing Securities on Main Board (the “Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as the deviation
from the code provision A.2.1, separation of roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.
The board of directors (the “Board”) considers that the Company
was in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code from 11 October 2013, being the date of listing of

the Company, to the date of this report.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company's operation is

vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval of
all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring of the performance
of the senior management. The directors of the Company
("Directors”) make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. Currently, the Board comprises six Directors,
including three executive directors and three independent

non-executive directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Jinshan

Ms. Yung Ka Lai

Mr. Chiu King Yan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie

Their biographical details and relationships among the
board members, if any are set out in the section entitled
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” in the annual

report.

Governance Report
ERAHRES

EFw
LINGES 2 1 bk b

ESEREEEALNAMBEASE &
BRARSEMERRSE  BERKE
REEZERERERFHE TERSRE
BAEBRBR -ARAER([EE])AHE
FEARDAFE AR TFHEERE
Brl ESEHA EES (BE=FH1T
EER=-FBNHFATES) AK:

RITES
PRl L
SEEBELL
ML

BAFBRTEE
BEARE
B EFEL
ERALE

RECBEABERESEHNEZHZH

BRMB)ERFRIESRSREEA
SREE|—&-

2016/2017 3 BREEHEZEBRERATF 27



28

Governance Report
BERABRESE

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies
and management of the Group’s businesses to the
executive Directors, senior management and certain specific

responsibilities to the Board committees.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. After the former
Chairman Mr. Weng lJiaxing resigned from the Company
in 2014, there is no position of the chairman and chief

executive officer up to the date of the report.

The Company will, from time to time, review the
effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance
structure and consider whether any changes, including
the establishment of the roles of the chairman and chief

executive officer.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term.
Such term is subject to his or her re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon such Director’s

retirement and offering himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third
of the Directors who have been longest in office since their
last election or re-election are also subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting. All retiring directors

are eligible for re-election.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, one of whom namely Mr. Wong Hon Kit possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and
financial management. Each of the three independent non-
executive Directors has confirmed his independence of the
Company and the Company considers each of them to be
independent in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a

specific term of three years.

Training and Support for Directors
The Company encourages the Directors to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Effective from 11 October 2013, the date of listing of the
Company, up to the date of this report, regulatory updates
and relevant materials on amendments of the Listing Rules
have been sent to the Directors for their awareness of the
latest development on regulatory requirements. Training

records of each Director will also be kept.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
CG Code provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
the Directors, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board has held
11 meetings. All executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors attended the meeting. The Board will

schedule to have at least four regular meetings in a year.
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Attendance record of each director at the meetings of

the Board together with the meetings of the Audit,

Remuneration and Nomination and Corporate Governance

Committee during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set

out below.

RBE=Z—
BESHFEESS

tHE=ZA=+-HLFE"
% EREL  FHM

KREREXERZTESE R L HH
BIENE ©

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, ERRY

Nomination

and Corporate

Audit Remuneration Governance

Board Committee Committee Committee

RER

Name of directors EERS EFg ENZA® FHZA® LEXELZA®

Executive directors RITEE

Mr. Chen Jinshan AT A 11/11 N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ATE A

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan® mEEz Lo 1711 N/ATE N/ATE A NARE

Ms. Yung Ka Lai fRBLT 11/11 N/AT i A N/ATE A N/ATiE A

Mr. Jiang Xiangfeng* TN F & 8/11 N/AT i F 2/4 N/AT i A

Mr. Chiu King Yan** il ke 1711 N/ATE 1/4 N/ATE
Independent non-executive BIFHTEES

directors

Mr. Liang Yichit — g 10/11 4/4 N/ATE A 23

Mr. Wong Hon Kit HEREE 11/11 4/4 4/4 33

Dr. Liu Yongping gEFEL 1111 4/4 4/4 33

Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie” EEARE" N/ATE A N/ATRE A N/ATE B N/ATE

* %

30

1 Board meeting was held before her resignation on 20 July
2016

8 Board meetings were held during the period from his
appointment on 20 July 2016 and his resignation on 24
March 2017

1 Board meeting was held after his appointment on 6 March
2017

10 Board meetings were held before his resignation on 24
March 2017

No Board meeting was held after his appointment on 24
March 2017
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Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising out of

corporate activities.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’

Securities Transactions

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") since
11 October 2013, being the date of listing of the Company,
up to the date of this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its model

code for securities transactions by Directors.

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee (collectively “Board Committees”)
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 24 September
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.2.1 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which is posted
on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Audit Committee’s current members include:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie
(appointed on 24 March 2017)
Mr. Liang Yichi
(resigned on 24 March 2017)

All of the committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standard;

(b) monitoring integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and if prepared for

publication, quarterly reports;

() reviewing the Company's financial controls, risk

management and internal control systems;

(d) reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules.

The Audit Committee shall hold at least four regular
meetings in a year to review and discuss the two quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements of the Company.
Additional meetings of the Audit Committee may be held as
and when required.
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The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditor
at least once a year. The external auditor may request a
meeting if they consider necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee

held four meetings.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management and
the Group's auditor the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed internal control and
financial reporting matters for the year ended 31 March
2017. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for
appointment as the auditors of the Company at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24
September 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rule and a copy
of which is posted on the website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee’s current

members include:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping
Ms. Shum Ngai Pan
(resigned on 20 July 2016)
Mr. Jiang Xiangfeng
(appointed on 20 July 2016 and
resigned on 24 March 2017)
Mr. Chiu King Yan
(appointed on 6 March 2017)
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The majority of the members are independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
reviews the remuneration package of the executive
Directors, independent non-executive Directors and senior
management, and makes appropriate recommendations
to the Board. Staff remuneration is determined by the
Group’s management by reference to the individual staff’s
qualifications, work experience, performance and prevailing

market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet once during
the financial year. During the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee will review the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and

senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
was established in 24 September 2013 with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.1 and D.3.1
of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rule and a copy of which
is posted on the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination and Corporate Governance

Committee’s current members include:

Mr. Liang Yichi
(resigned on 24 March 2017)
Mr. Wong Hon Kit
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie
(appointed on 24 March 2017)
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The majority of the members are independent non-executive
Directors. The primary duties of the nomination and
corporate governance committee include, but are not limited

to:

(@) reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations

to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorship;

(c)  making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer of the Company; and

(d) keeping the effectiveness of the corporate governance

and system of internal controls of the Group.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee shall
meet once during the financial year. During the meeting,
the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee will
review the structure and composition (including the skills,

knowledge and experience) of the Board.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held

two meetings during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, the
individual is required to declare such interest and to abstain
from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting
attended by Directors who have no material interest in the

transaction.

The Group also adopted certain internal control policies to

manage potential conflicts of interest.

Company Secretary

Mr. Tsang Wai Wa (“Mr. Tsang”), the company secretary
of the Company, is a full time employee of the Group and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr.
Tsang duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biographical details of the company secretary is set out in
the section entitled “Directors and Senior Management

Profile” in the annual report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the financial controller and the
finance and accounts department of the Company are
responsible for the preparation of accounts for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2017, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards, made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have
prepared the accounts on a going concern basis. The
Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which reflect the financial information of the Group

with reasonable accuracy.
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External Auditor’'s Remuneration

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed
as the Company’s external auditor since the Company’s
incorporation. There was no disagreement between
the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,

appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March

2017 is set out below:
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Nature of services REHE &@|(FBXT)
Audit services E %R 987
Internal Control and Risk Management Systems MMBERRRBEERRHK

The Group's internal control and risk management systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems.
In 2017, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has
reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy
of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group.

The Board will review the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting

function annually.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enable shareholders and

investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

The members of the Board, Board Committees and the
external auditor are present to answer shareholders’
questions in the annual general meeting of the Company.
Meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders before
the annual general meeting and special general meetings in
accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down in
the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company. All the
resolutions proposed to be approved at the general meetings
will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

after the meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the
Group maintains a website where information on the
Company’'s announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors
may write directly to the Company at its principal place of

business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone number, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make
any query that they may have with respect to the Company.
They can also send their enquiries to the Board through
these means. In addition, shareholders can contact the share
registrar of the Company, if they have any enquires about

their shareholdings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings, and the
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the

deposit of such requisition.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents since incorporation on 9 July 2012 and up to 31
March 2017.
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Over the years, the Group has been holding the operation vision
of “Honesty and morality go first”, adhere to the operation
objective of “Benefiting the society and the populace” to provide
healthy products and services as its mission, conduct capital
expansion as its measures, and supported by corporate culture
construction. The Group’s market size is expanding gradually and
is building a leading service brand image within the industry to
become a leading pharmaceutical distribution model enterprise in

Fujian with core competitiveness.
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The board of directors (the
Limited (the
shareholders of the Company (the

“Board”) of Wanjia Group Holdings
“Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the
“Shareholders”) its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2017.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 9 July

2012 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
by way of introduction on 11 October 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business, pharmaceutical retail chain business and
hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service business in the
PRC. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out

in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 and
the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 March 2017 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 71 of this

report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2017.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 212 of
this report. The summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group did not further invest in investment property during
the year. Details of the movements in investment property of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at cost of
approximately HK$5.967 million during the year. Details of the
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on page 72 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 4.69%
of the Group’s revenue and the Group’s five largest customers in

aggregate accounted for approximately 17.16%.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented approximately 20.91% of the Group’s total value
of purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for

approximately 10.05% of the Group’s total value of purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in the share

capital of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year

and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Chen Jinshan
Ms. Shum Ngai Pan
(resigned on 20 July 2016)
Ms. Yung Ka Lai
Mr. Jiang Xiangfeng
(appointed on 20 July 2016 and
resigned on 24 March 2017)
Mr. Chiu King Yan
(appointed on 6 March 2017)
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Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Liang Yichi
(resigned on 24 March 2017)
Mr. Wong Hon Kit
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie
(appointed on 24 March 2017)

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chiu King Yan and Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie, the
executive director and independent non-executive director of the
Company, will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Dr. Liu Yongping, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forth

coming annual general meeting.
All other Directors will continue in office.

The biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set on pages 16 to 21 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chen Jinshan, has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 1 year commencing on 10 October 2014
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party

giving to the other party at least 1 month’s notice in writing.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

BWIUAFERTES:

22—tk
(R-—EBE—+&E=F =+ A BE)

BERLE

AEFEL

EEPLEE
(R=B—+E=ZA=-+MAEEE)

BEAQARZHEHBBERMAEIG)K AN
BITESRBUFATESHBMCEERER
AAERNEERRBFAE LHESER
HEERLBESERES-

BREARAZABERMAIEME XOFH
VIHTESTEERELERIEFELHERE
ERRBFAS LWESR HEFSERILE
EERBEE-

FrIEHMESSEETR -

BEENOREEAEBREABHNAFERE 16
E2IH - EERAERATNALZHESFEE
DRIERGE T HERERMEI3R14 ©

RRARCEBRBLFATESRIRELTR
BISE33MRIFH 2 B AR - R A B RBA
FREBYFHUTESRBEL

EFER¥EESH
RELEECERAAUEEEEARFAT
YTES B-F-DNETATEEFRM—
EoURREABE BEEA-—SES -5
BEFOR—EAZBEEBENRILRL .



Ms. Yung Ka Lai has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company by way of a service contract with the Company for a
term of 1 year commencing on 5 August 2015 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party at least 1 month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Chiu King Yan has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company by way of a service contract with the Company
commencing on 6 March 2017 which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other party at least 1

month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from 11 April 2013 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than 3

months’ notice in writing.

Dr. Liu Yongping has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from 27 February 2014 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than 3

months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company commencing from 24 March
2017 which will continue thereafter until either the independent
non-executive director or the Company may terminate the
agreement by giving the other party not less than 1 months’

notice in writing.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interests whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS
A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by Directors is currently in force and was

in force throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.
The remuneration policies of the Directors are decided by the

Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group's operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Disclosure of Interests

(a)

Directors’ interests and short position in the securities

of the Company

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in
the Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing Rules,
were as follows:
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Approximate

percentage
Number of the total
Name of director Nature of interests of shares Position issued shares
HEBT
BBz
EENE EanHHE Bz & B Bfr Bhaask
Ms. Yung Ka Lai Corporate interests 11,201,475 Long 1.73%
(Note)
SERELL NAEEmE (T 3y

Note: Ms. Yung Ka Lai holds the Company’s shares through Power
King Investment Development Limited.

MizE: HE=EELLEBPower King Investment
Development Limited# & & 2 7 i
o

2016/2017 F3 HEEREERBRHERLE

47



48

Report of the Directors
EESERE

(b)

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions (b) FERRNRIRGRIEMAKRNDZEEZR
in shares and underlying shares nRE
As at 31 March 2017, other than the interests of a director RIE—tF=A=+—HB BRLEX[E
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under ERFETHAENEKATR LB E
the heading “Directors’ and chief executive's interests in BzRo HEROLNEEZIZES ] —
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the company MR ERANBEEFFIETHRAE Z
and its associated corporations” above, the following BEEN UTALT(RATZEERITH
persons (not being a Director or the chief executive officer BERIN) RN B RO NABBERR D P %
of the Company) have an interests or a short position in BERIERESNHEERBIEXVIE2RES
Shares or underlying Shares which would be required to be DEIENEOARNTRRERIEE &
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under AR DNTIRIEHZ SR EEEH FE3I361E
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, FEZETMzEZIAE
or which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
Approximate
percentage
Number of the total
Name of shareholder Capacity Position of shares issued shares
HEBT
BRin#asz
BREEE e 51 Bir iz & H ghaak
China Child Care Beneficial owner Long 90,000,000 13.88%
Corporation Limited
FEREEESRAQR ESERA #r
New Hope International Beneficial owner Long 54,914,804 8.47%
(Hong Kong) Limited (Note 1)
FHLEER (FB)ERLT BESEREA L5
(By=E1)
Southern Hope Enterprise Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 8.47%
Company Limited* (Note 1)
REAZEEERRAT (K1) ARER "R
New Hope Group Company Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 8.47%
Limited* (Note 1)
FHREEERRLA (ME1) ARER HE
i English translations of official Chinese names are for identification purpose only
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Approximate

percentage

Number of the total

Name of shareholder Capacity Position of shares issued shares

HERTT

. 3VE: Y

BRREE e 210 B EinE A #@Haastt

Tibet Hengye Feng Industrial Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 8.47%

Company Limited” (Note 1)
AREXEEXERAT" NGIE: 3 HE
(FFEET)

Mr. Liu Yonghao (Note 1) Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 8.47%
LKk (HIaET) NGIE: 3 He

Ms. Liu Chang (Note 1) Corporate interest Long 54,914,804 8.47%
2wz + (FFEET) NE R e

Ms. Li Wei (Note 1) Interest of spouse Long 54,914,804 8.47%
EHuz+ (MEE) [ingtp #E

Note 1: New Hope International (Hong Kong) Limited is MizE1 : HEFEZEBR(FEB)ERITIRN

interested in 54,914,804 shares. The issued share 54,914,804 PR EE &R -

capital of New Hope International (Hong Kong) Limited FHEER(FEB)ERLATAZE

is owned as to 75% by Southern Hope Enterprise BORADHEFFEEERR

Company Limited* which is in turn owned as to 51% by NEEBTS%ER MEA %L

New Hope Group Company Limited* and 49% by Tibet EXERARDPIAFFLEER

Hengye Feng Industrial Company Limited?. Both New ERABDRAREXEBEETR

Hope Group Company Limited# and Tibet Hengye Feng AAIFEES1%RA9%ER  H %

Industrial Company Limited* are owned as to 62.34% EEEERATDRAHEXEE

by Mr. Liu Yonghao, as to 36.35% by Ms. Liu Chang X(XERDBHBIKGFEE BB L

and as to 1.31% by Ms. Li Wei. Mr. Liu Yonghao, Ms. TRERLLHAIEE62.34%

Liu Chang and Ms. Li Wei are deemed to be interested 36.35% K% 1.31%HE 75 » #1021 K &F

in the shares in which New Hope International (Hong Sk BB LEIRFHELTHRE

Kong) Limited is interested in. REFELEER (FB)BRATAM

R 2RO HEEES -
& English translations of official Chinese names are for identification purpose only
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shared and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations” above, at no
time since incorporation of the Company were right to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or of any other body corporate granted to any
directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors, their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees and those other persons
that the Board considers that they will contribute or have
contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as described in
the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as compliment and
to reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The maximum
number of shares that can be issued according to the Share
Option Scheme was 64,840,530 shares, which is equivalent to
10% of the issued capital of the Company after completion of the
Listing on the Stock Exchange. The number of options that may
be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares immediately after
the completion of the Listing. Unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the number of
shares that may be granted to a Participant under the options shall
not exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than those
granted to the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted under
the options to the substantial shareholders of the Company or
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the
Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that the
options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by
the Board; however no options shall be exercised 10 years after
they have been granted. The exercise price of the option shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b)
the average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal value of the share.
Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the
option is granted. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from
the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of
10 years from that date.
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Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have

been granted up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Certain related party transactions which are significant are

disclosed in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

Rental agreement with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical
Chain Company Limited (“FHP Chain")

Tenancy Agreement 1

On 4 December 2014, Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Fujian Huihao”), an
indirectly-owned subsidiary of the Company and FHP Chain
entered a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 1”)
for the rental of (i) Level 1 and Level 4 of the office building
located at No. 8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian,
Fujian Province, the PRC (the “Property 1) with a gross floor
area (“GFA") approximately 1,268 square meter (“sq.m.”); and
(ii) Levels 1 to 3 of the warehouse building located at No. 8
Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian, the PRC (the
“Property 2") with a GFA of approximately 9,852 sq.m.. The term
of the lease is from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental
of RMB10,144 per month for the Property 1 and RMB49,260 per
month for the Property 2 and is renewable upon the signing of a

new rental agreement.
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Tenancy Agreement 2

On 4 December 2014, Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain
Company Limited (the “Huihao Sihai”), an indirectly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and FHP Chain entered a new tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 2”) for the rental of (i) Level
3 of the office building located at No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie
Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the "Property 3")
with a GFA of approximately 600 sq.m.; and (ii) Level 4 of the
warehouse building located on No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town,
Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the “Property 4") with
a GFA of approximately 3,284 sg.m.. The term of the lease is
from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental of RMB4,800
per month for the Property 3 and RMB16,420 per month for the
Property 4 and is renewable upon the signing of the new rental

agreement.

FHP Chain was held as to 50% of its issued share capital by Mr.
Weng lJiale who is a cousin of both Ms. Yung Ka Lai (“Ms. Yung")
and Mr. Yung Ka Chun (“Mr. Yung”). Ms. Yung and Mr. Yung
are siblings, Ms. Yung is the executive director of the Group and
Mr. Yung is a substantial shareholder of Hua Xia and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4) of the

Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the annual cap, also the
total rental charge paid, for the Group's total transaction amount
with FHP Chain contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement 1
is RMB712,848 (equivalent to approximately HK$822,199) and
Tenancy Agreement 2 is RMB254,640 (equivalent to approximately
HK$293,702).
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Rental agreements entered with Yung Muk Ying (the mother

of Yung Ka Lai) (“Ms. Yung”)

Tenancy Agreement 3

On 4 December 2014, Putian Huihao Medicine Company
Limited” (B2 EHEHFEBEAER A A ) ("Putian Huihao”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a
tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 3”) with Ms. Yung
which for rental of (i) Level 1 of which is located at No. 1466,
1470, 1476 Xiadian Road, GongChen Street, Licheng District,
Putian City, Fujian Province, China (“Property 5”) with a GFA of
approximately 169.81 sq.m.; and (ii) Level 2 of which is located at
No. 1466, 1470, 1476 Xiadian Road, GongChen Street, Licheng
District, Putian City, Fujian Province, China (“Property 6") with a
GFA of approximately 192.86 sq.m.. The term of the lease is from
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental of RMB3,396.2 per
month for Property 5 and RMB1,928.6 per month for Property 6

and is renewable upon the signing of the new rental agreement.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the annual cap, also the
total rental charge paid, for the Group's total transaction amount
with Ms. Yung contemplated under the Tenancy agreement 3 is
RMB63,897 (equivalent to approximately HK$73,699).
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company, Mr.
Liang Yichi, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Dr. Liu Yongping have, for
the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
continuing connected transactions, for the reporting period, have

been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)

independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Review of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Company’s auditors have issue their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited, Greatly Wealth
Global Group Limited, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, Marshal
International Investments Limited and Easeglory Holdings Limited
(together as the “Controlling Shareholders”) had entered into
a deed of non-competition dated 30 September 2013 (the "Deed
of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company (for itself and
on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant to which, each
of the Controlling Shareholders would not, and would use his/its
best endeavours to procure his/its associates (except any members
of our Group) not to directly or indirectly carry on, engage,
participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to
or otherwise be interested and/or involved (in each case whether
as shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit,
reward or otherwise) in any business which may be in competition
with the business carried on by the Group from time to time,

except where the Company’s approval is obtained.

Details of the Deed of Non-Competition are set out in the section
headed “Relationship with Hua Xia Group and Connected Persons

— Non-Competition Deed"” of the Prospectus.

The Company confirms that each of the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with the Deed of Non-Competition from the
date of listing up until 31 March 2017. In order to ensure the
Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Deed of Non-
Competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders have provided
to the Company a written confirmation that they and their
respective associates are in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition and except through any member of the Group, did
not directly or indirectly, carry on or hold any right or interests in
or render any services to, or is otherwise involved in, any business
which may be in competition with the business carried on by the

Group from the date of listing up until 31 March 2017.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
also reviewed the status of the compliance by each of the
Controlling Shareholders with the undertakings in the Deed
of Non-Competition and have confirmed that, as far as they
can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the Controlling
Shareholders of the undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition

given by them.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as applied the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since
its listing on the Stock Exchange, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31
March 2017, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate

Governance Report in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the

Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available
information and the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has sufficient public float as required under Rule 8.08 of

the Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period

are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2017 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Jinshan

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 June 2017
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B %R E

31/F, Gloucester Tower &/
B st 0 F WA R The Landmark R
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited 11 Pedder Street SITH115%
Central B i E %
Hong Kong HELTITRE3E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to
211, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter
REFEHER

BERHER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
ENETEARNNEEREFNEER

Impairment assessment on goodwill

R E

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.

LRMGEMBREMEVNUARGEMBHRRMEIZ2EAEE-

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in current

year and pharmaceutical wholesale business in prior

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

EMEEEEmENRENGETHEFREE:

years because the cost of the combination included a

control premium.
AFEEWBEOLRENAERBZARBEBERBEIFE
WEERMRERELEREDESHR ARSI

DL jEE
B o

Assessing the valuation methodology;

o FHMEEERES

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry;

e MEBERMEBZEBNTENNR BERERRINE

%
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued

Key audit matter

Independent Auditors’ Report
B 3 % BED RS

BT ER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REE=ER EMETEARNNEERBEAFTR
Impairment assessment on goodwill — continued

AR EFE-E

The management performs an annual impairment
test on the recoverability of the goodwill which is
subjective in nature due to judgements having to be
made of future performance.
EEENBENIMEMETFERENR ARNEY
ARKRBPAFEHAE HEBETEME-

The valuation of goodwill performed by an
independent professional external valuer based on the
value in use calculation. The valuation requires the
application of significant judgement and estimation
by the management in determining the appropriate
valuation methodology to be used, use of subjective
assumptions and various unobservable inputs. The
valuation is sensitive to underlying assumptions
applied by the valuer such as pre-tax discount rates
and growth rate used and cash flow projection which
can have a significant impact to the valuation.
BYEXRIIBEEMETHREGENDEREREE
AE-MEEREEENEES THEACEEMRES
FEFEBRREBEETTERRABB2ERAKERE
RH R A=t - (G EH MG ER AT E RV ERERER (40
FRABAMMRERERERREREFAN) B2 MZ
ERR[ELETELEERZE -

o Checking on sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used;

o HMEREMRANE ABBNEEREMEEMT;

o Assessing the competence, expertise and objectivity
of the management expert who calculates the
recoverable amount of goodwill; and

e AETEBETHWEDSENEERBERNED  EHM
ReEREEME R

o Engaging a valuation expert to evaluate the
assumptions and methodologies used in the

calculation.

s ZRE-FMESERFAETEAANBRKRELE-

We found the key assumptions were supported by the

available evidence.

BMRR 2ESERBRCEMEREXE-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matter
REFHER

BT ER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EMETERABNMEERZENEER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

58 5 B W % T R (L A £

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements.

LRGN BRERMWEBURGEMBHRRMEIZEAEE-

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration
the credit history of the customers and the current
market condition which may require management
judgment.

RETEDREBENEERRER. BEREEZEER
FEERHEKRBRITHR  EEE 88 H B UL F H & -

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of trade receivables included:

EMBEEBENE S BUCREREMNGETHREFRE:

o Discussing the Group’s procedures on credit limits
and credit periods given to customers with the
management;

e HEHEENW SEENEERBEFHEFRGTE
FHEESN;

o Evaluating the management'’s impairment assessment
of trade receivables; and

o IREEEMNESZRBUERERNGE K

. Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of information included in the impairment
assessment of trade receivables.

e MEREZEZERWFERENEPAEENNERM
R EBAE -

We consider the management conclusion to be consistent

with the available information.

EMRAEEEAWEMSER -3
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon

("Other Information™).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Independent Auditors’ Report
B % TR E

HEttEH

BERARESFHAMERNEE -HAMERBRE
HENFHRANER ETREFSUBRE
REMAOZEEG RS ((HEER]) -

EMNEUGESUBBERNZRETEEEME
B BAFTTHZEHMERNBRREMERHN
B AW e

FERMNVGRESUBBRRNES  HANERE
EHBEHMER EHBEP ZRHAMER
RREGANBRRIARMEEFBRETFRT
BHBREFEEREBNEUTFEEARHER
R BER - EREMEHTHIH IRK
MRAAEMERNFEERERRL  RAFTE

BERBE-AENEH BEMRBEMBHS -

EFERERZREMNGEMBHESR
AREBHRE

EARESARERETBETMOASRMEY
(BERUBHREEL) REE (RARAFD) 6
REAERBEEMTENGREPHER XL
HEDBREREUBRERNERTEFERR
HRF 3586 5R 1 48 BV B K EE ER PR AP 3R 49 A AR
EHAR-

2016/2017 F3 HEREERBRERLE

63



64

Independent Auditors’ Report
B % AT 3R

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- continued

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

EERERZREMGSMBGHE
ARENRE-&

EREBFEHBRRE ES8HTMH B&
BEiIFEKENE ) YEERABRATRERR
BREARNSZE UREAFELCERST
Eft BRIESHERH BEEEBERYFLE
g B EAMBERNERLT R

BEREENTBREE

EBER TR S M BB RAED
RiE

EMNER RUGSUBBRRBERS T
TE A BFF SR 85 5R T B B E RS RR IR AL EL
BEERF LHABEREME R WABENR
o RMEARBRRELRE BRI
BEVLEAMAZR - BRMNFERARENAE
EEMEMA T AERE EEFEE-

FERBRESAKFTHRE EFRERIRR
(BRETER) ETHNES EE-—EXE
R PR A B AR BE 35 3 - 8 SRR T AR BKRE
FEREIE REERHCMERFIERRL
ROUELEREVBRBRREAERBEFSYE
R 2% P 4F W B9 EORTE - BB BA A9 $5 BR R AT
WREEK



AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B % AT 3R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417
Hong Kong, 16 June 2017

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEBEmaRHEMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M EE THET FET
Revenue I & 8 985,909 1,321,763
Cost of sales SHER A (859,640) (1,175,635)
Gross profit EF 126,269 146,128
Other revenue H At &= 9 3,582 5,000
Other gain and loss, net HihW sz R E51E - F58 10 990 2,530
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BEEB QAR ZEIE 26 (326) (772)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (95,226) (100,466)
Administrative expenses THRAX (45,223) (48,359)
(Loss)/profit from operations EEEK (BR|) &# 11 (9,934) 4,061
Finance costs B i E A 12 (14,441) (16,365)
Loss before taxation BRIREIESE (24,375) (12,304)
Taxation Bi1E 15 (1,350) (1,158)
Loss for the year EEEGR (25,725) (13,462)
Other comprehensive loss TEEREMZEEGR
for the year
Items that may be reclassified IREZEFHDEZ
subsequently to profit or loss: B 2IHH
Exchange differences on translating of #BEEIMNEEETR 2
foreign operations fE N E%E (18,996) (18,924)
Reclassification adjustment from R E — B E A R
translation reserve upon disposal HESREEN>EAE
a subsidiary (1,349) -
Total comprehensive loss TEERXEERASE
for the year (46,070) (32,386)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEBEaRHEMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it 5 FET FHET
Loss for the year attributable to: BEXFESE:
Owners of the Company AKABEB A (25,792) (13,802)
Non-controlling interests FERESR 67 340
(25,725) (13,462)
Total comprehensive loss BEFEEREGIREHE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RKRAREB A (41,629) (29,935)
Non-controlling interests R ER (4,441) (2,451)
(46,070) (32,386)
Loss per share attributable to EAFHBEARGSE
owners of the Company: BiR:
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EHAKR (ZREAN) 17 (3.98) (2.13)
- Diluted (HK cents per share) — 8 (ZREW) 17 (3.98) (2.13)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B B R &

As at 31 March 2017 R=ZZE—+tF=F=+—H

2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E-REF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BT &E FE&xT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BRERZE 18 27,318 18,384
Prepaid lease payments FEFHEERE 19 10,276 11,347
Investment property BREWE 20 6,766 7,199
Goodwill [EES 21 123,871 342
168,231 37,272
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 7E 22 86,134 107,578
Trade and other ESRHEMEWK
receivables and deposits REREZS 23 202,097 284,171
Amounts due from fellow A EEN I EPNGIE
subsidiaries 27 - 8,181
Pledged bank deposits EIRARITER 28 10,156 6,096
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBELEHEER 28 93,721 203,500
392,108 609,526
Current liabilities g =K
Trade and other payables B RHEMENRIE 29 178,346 233,078
Amount due to the ultimate FEF R AR D B FIE
holding company 30 - 485
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE R ZA B L TR IE 31 - 10,802
Bank borrowings IRITEE 32 59,342 32,396
Convertible notes BB EE 33 83,369 -
Tax payables FE 1 %1 18 1,418 1,683
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 34 80 =
322,555 278,444
Non-current liabilities EREBAR
Convertible notes o AR E R 33 - 77,267
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEEE 34 - 563
- 77,830
Net current assets mEEERE 69,553 331,082
Total assets less current liabilities SEHERTDAR 237,784 368,354
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBERRE

As at 31 March 2017 R=F—+tF=B=+—H

2017 2016

—Z—+tF —E-RF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B =E THET F&T

Net assets BEESE 237,784 290,524

Capital and reserves BFE R

Share capital (&N 35 6,484 6,484

Reserves R 181,627 216,260
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE ARBERER

the Company 188,111 222,744

Non-controlling interests R ERE 49,673 67,780

Total equity oy 237,784 290,524

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2017

and signed on its behalf by:

Chen Jinshan

Executive Director

Yung Ka Lai

Executive Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

REEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOARNEABE
Non-
Share Share Other  Contribution  Translation Statutory ~ Convertible  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  note reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
THRERE
(23 KRR Rl (381 ] ERER EERR (1] RItBR Mt FERHE #i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEn FiEn TiEn TR TR TR TR T#R FiEn FiEn
(Note 36) (Note (a) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d)) (Note (e)) (Note (f))
(Hi&36) (K@) (M (o)) (H3E() (W) (M) (W)
At 1 April 2015 W=E-EFMA-A 6,484 (7,653) (6,483) 866,811 17,361 31,189 o (633,928) 273,781 9,263 283,044
Loss for the year rEEFR - - - - - - - (13,802) (13,802) 340 (13,462)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, KEERMB2ERE
net of income tax: NBHEH:
Exchange differences on translating of REBNMEERZERER
foreign operations - - - - (16,133) - - - (16,133) (2,791) (18,924)
Total comprehensive loss for the year REEREFRER - - - - (16,133) - - (13,802) (29,935) (2451) (32,3%6)
Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary BAEHE-BHBAT2ER - = (29,208) - - - - - (29,208) 63,409 34,201
Additional interests in a subsidiary W-EREARZENER - - 550 - - - - - 550 (550) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 26) HE-BREAT (Kie) - - - - (139) - - - (139) (1,891) (2,030)
Issue of convertible notes ROURRES - - - - - - 9,624 - 9,624 = 9,624
Deferred taxation of convertible notes TRREEZELHE - - - - - - (1,929) - (1,929) - (1,929)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTIERE - - - - - 724 - (724) - - -
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZF-AE=B=+-HR
“E-AEMA-A 6,484 (7,653) (35,141) 866,811 1,089 31913 7,695 (648,454) 222,744 67,780 290,524
Loss for the year KEEFR - - - - = - = (25,792) (25,792) 67 (25,725)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, AEEHE2ERE
net of income tax: NBAEH:
Exchange differences on translating of AEEMIEERENER
foreign operations - - - - (14,488) - - - (14,488) (4,508) (18,99)
Reclassification adjustment from translation 1t &— BB 2 A%
reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary BEAGRBENAIEAR N - - - (1,349) - - - (1,349) - (1,349)
Total comprehensive loss for the year rEELEEREE - - - - (15,837) - - (25,792) (41,629) (4,441) (46,070)
Additional interests in a subsidiary R-BHEL R EMER - - 6,99 - - - - - 6,996 (6,996) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries KEHBAT - - - - = B - B - 3,804 3,804
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 26) HE-BHRBAR (Kihe) - - - - - (204) - 204 - (10,474) (10,474)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRZIERE - - - - - 498 - (498) - - -
At 31 March 2017 R-2-t£ZA=+-H 6,484 (7,653) (28,145) 866,811 (14,748) 32,207 7,695 (674,540) 188,111 49,673 237,784
Notes: Mt EE :
(a) Share premium (a) Bin &R
The amount of approximately HK$7,653,000 represents the #7,653,000 8 T2 S BBIEARATRHR=-F
capitalised listing expenses arised from the listing of the shares of —=F+A+-—BEBABHERSZAMERL
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong (BN ERETEEZER LS
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 October 2013. X e
(b) Other reserve (b) H fth 6% fi

The other reserve represented the difference between the
Company's shares of nominal value of the paid-up capital of
subsidiaries acquired over the Company's cost of acquisition of the

subsidiaries under common control upon the reorganisation.

On 8 March 2017, the Group purchased 3.14% equity interests
of Fuzhou Huihao by way of increasing the registered capital
of Fuzhou Huihao from RMB80,000,000 to RMB91,500,000. A
subsidiary of the Group agreed to pay HK$12,000,000 for the
increase capital of Fuzhou Huihao. The Group recognised an

increase in other reserve of approximately HK$6,996,000.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZEZ==

Notes: — continued

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Other reserve - continued

On 12 May 2015, the Group disposed 25% equity interest
of Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Fuzhou Huihao”) by way of increasing the
registered capital of Fuzhou Huihao from RMB60,000,000 to
RMB80,000,000. The non-controlling interests of Fuzhou Huihao
agreed to pay RMB20,000,000 for the increase capital of Fuzhou
Huihao. The Group recognised a decrease in other reserve of
approximately HK$29,208,000.

Contribution reserve

Capitalisation of the outstanding amount of approximately
HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero Enterprises Limited
(“Timely Hero”) to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua
Xia") on 3 September 2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment
and issue 1 share of US$1 in the share capital of Timely Hero to
Luxuriant Expand Global Investment Limited (“Luxuriant Expand”),
credited as fully paid up, at the direction of Hua Xia; and (ii) the
allotment and issue of a total of 100 shares of US$1 each in the
share capital of Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to
Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of 1 share in Timely Hero
at the direction of Hua Xia. Details of the reorganisation were set
out in the paragraph headed “The Reorganisation” in the section
headed “Corporate history, development and Reorganisation” in
the prospectus dated 30 September 2013.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the Peoples’
Republic China (the “PRC"), the subsidiaries of the Company
establishing in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after
taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the
reserve balances has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid up
capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by
the Board of Directors and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

Convertible note reserve

The convertible note reserve represents the equity components
of the convertible notes issued. Convertible notes issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial recognition at
the fair values of the convertible notes, which is determined by
independent qualified professional valuers.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M =E FTHET FET
Operating activities BEXRB
Loss before taxation BREE A E 1B (24,375) (12,304)
Adjustments for: FEIER
Interest income FIEWA 9 (361) (220)
Interest expenses FEBX 12 14,441 16,365
Amortisation of prepaid lease FENHEEREEHE
payments 19 366 365
Depreciation of property, M BMERREITE
plant and equipment 18 5,991 6,449
Provision for impairment loss on B REMEVRRERE
trade and other receivables EiERE 1,508 1,176
Reversal of impairment loss of B 5 Rk HEMEWRIEREBE
trade and other receivables EEEE (890) (683)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EMBARZEE 26 326 772
Change in fair value of REWMELAFEEE
investment property - 490
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BERZEZ
plant and equipment EiE 640 337
Operating cash flows before EEECEDNMEEHARE
movements in working capital (2,354) 12,747
Decrease in inventories FERD 11,179 16,132
Decrease in trade and other EZREMEBWFIER
receivables and deposits BemD 44,901 157,463
Decrease in trade and other payables B REMEMARERD (38,036) (5,514)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due AN E NG
from fellow subsidiaries FIE (B ) R (2,621) 11,242
Decrease in amount due from FEWE EER A
the immediate holding company IR A - 15
Decrease in amount due to P R AR IR A R FIE
the ultimate holding company D (485) (4,030)
Cash generated by operations XBMEBERS 12,584 188,055
PRC enterprise income tax paid EHMNPETEFRSH (2,129) (4,469)
Net cash generated from BEXBFREIHQPH
operating activities 10,455 183,586
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
M 5F THET F&ET

Investing activities BEEE
Interest received 2 WF 2 361 220
Purchase of property, plant and BENE BERZE

equipment 18 (5,967) (3,957)
Additions of prepaid lease payment AT EFRIEE N - (7,934)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVE BERSZEZ

plant and equipment 8 RIE 51 =
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — BB QRS RE 26 9,302 2,107
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEEHE AR 2

subsidiaries BERHF5E 25 (125,480) =
Deemed disposal of interest RIFHE—REMBARZ

in a subsidiary = - 16,314
Net cash (used in)/generated BREEE (FRA) W&

from investing activities H&RHE (121,733) 6,750
Financing activities il E B
Interest paid EFFE (8,339) (11,699)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 IR 1T F RO (4,528) 6,874
Proceeds from new bank borrowings LR IT R BRIE 96,872 97,341
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (67,976) (186,399)
Net proceeds from convertible notes TR EE S RIEFEE - 82,225
Net cash generated from/(used in) B EFEBFRE (FRA)

financing activities REeBR®H 16,029 (11,658)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RE&RREFEHIFEH

cash equivalents (WD), BnEH (95,249) 178,678
Cash and cash equivalents FMZHeRBEE£FE

at the beginning of the year HH 203,500 43,029
Effect of foreign exchange NEEXZZH 2L

rate changes (14,530) (18,207)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBSRBEEEE

at the end of the year HH 93,721 203,500

The accompanying notes form an

consolidated financial statements.

integral part of these
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEHmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

76

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted Company
with limited liabilities in the Cayman Islands. The address
of the registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 10008,
Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman, KY1-1001,
Cayman Islands. The head office and principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong is located at Room
1902, 19/F., 101 King's Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The Group is principally engaged in pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, pharmaceutical retain
chain business and hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
service business in the PRC. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange since 11 October 2013. Prior to 2 March
2017, the Company’s immediate holding company was
Greatly Wealth Global Group Limited (“Greatly Wealth”),
a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands. Greatly
Wealth is a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of Hua Xia, a
company incorporated in Cayman lIslands on 28 May 2001
as an exempted company with limited liability, of which
is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the
Stock Exchange and it was the ultimate holding company of
the Company. However, on 2 March 2017, the shares of the
Company held by Hua Xia have been distributed by Hua Xia
to its shareholders. Since then, the Company is no longer a

subsidiary of Hua Xia.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as functional
currency of the Company, and the functional currency of
the most of the subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”). The
Board of Directors considered that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in HK$ as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
consolidated financial statements are rounded to the nearest
thousands (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA, which are effective for the Group's financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2016.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

Investment Entities:

Applying the Consolidation Exception

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisition of Interests
in Joint Operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which

are summarised below.

BRI REEITEEME
BEEN([FBMERESE
VD)

RAFE  AEBSERRATHIRES
BEHET D &6 2 AT RS T ER - 45
TARRE (THTREBTEENBR
HRA)  BEEA - BTRRBEDR
AEBR-F-AFNA-BRZ%E
94 0 B B B AR o

ERUBREEL FEUBREEN-R-Z

(BT A) FECZ-MERYLEF
EiE

BERMBHREELY REER HLARAME

E10% BARME  RZER
REERE2HR

BBEHER

285 (55T A)

EAMBHREEN WEARCEERZEHE
E115E (BRIR) B
EAMBREEN EEELRP

5145
EBEEL
F18 (BT R)
BEBETER REMEREBHE BRI
FloRRBBE
2 B 55385
CCHES)
BEBgTEL
E16RBBE
EBIEA15%
CEHEN)
EBgTTEL
275
CCHES)

BRETEM

REEEMAN

BYMBHER BRI

ERAMGREEN_—_S——EF_2—/N
FRMZEEYE
BERMEREEN T ——FFZ=_F—N
FHEHHEFERECEZER BUER
HEBR ZERTA T o

2016/2017 F3 HEEREERBRHERLE

77



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+F=A=1t—HILFE

78

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- continued

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting
is discontinued. The amendments shall be applied

prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities provide additional
guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing
involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of the
disclosures required in relation to transferred assets and
clarify that the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the
amendments to HKFRS 7 issued in December 2011 and
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
are not explicitly required for all interim periods. However,
the disclosures may need to be included in condensed
interim financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim

Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for
post-employment benefits should be issued in the same
currency as the benefits to be paid. These amendments
would result in the depth of the market for high quality
corporate bonds being assessed at currency level. The
amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented in the financial statements
in which the amendments are first applied. Any initial
adjustment arising should be recognised in opening retained

earnings of the earliest comparative period presented.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- continued

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is
presented elsewhere in the interim financial report. The
amendments require that such information be incorporated
by way of a cross reference from the interim financial
statements to the other part of the interim financial report
that is available to users on the same terms and at the same

time as the interim financial statements.

The application of the said amendments to HKFRSs has had
no material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation

Exception

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities and HKAS 28 /nvestments in Associates and
Joint Ventures clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements is available to a parent
entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the
investment entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair value
in accordance with HKFRS 10. The amendments also clarify
that the requirement for an investment entity to consolidate
a subsidiary, whose main purpose is to provide services and
activities that are related to the investment activities of the
investment entity parent, applies only to subsidiaries that are

not investment entities themselves.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation

Exception — continued

The application of these amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28 has had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as the Group is not an
investment entity and does not have any subsidiary, associate

or joint venture that qualifies as an investment entity.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how
to account for the acquisition of a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state that the
relevant principles on accounting for business combinations
in HKFRS 3 and other standards (e.g. HKAS 36 regarding
impairment testing of a cash-generating unit (“CGU") to
which goodwill on acquisition of a joint operation has been
allocated) should be applied. The same requirements should
be applied to the formation of a joint operation if and only
if an existing business is contributed to the joint operation
on its formation by one of the parties that participate in the

joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for

business combinations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

- continued

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
application of these amendments to HKFRS 11 has had
no material impact on the Group's consolidated financial

statements.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further
encourage companies to apply professional judgment in
determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements. For example, the amendments make clear that
materiality applies to the whole of financial statements and
that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit
the usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgment in determining where and in what order

information is presented in the financial disclosures.

The application of these amendments to HKAS 1 has had
no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERHIREBITERMBE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING FEAN([FEMBREEN])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued — 18
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 ERAOGENE16MREEEER
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of E38M (EBRTF ) BBFINERMMB
Depreciation and Amortisation W&
The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a BEREHERNE 12BN ZELIEE
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property, BE BERREEEEAUNKEAE
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 W2 EL - BEBEFTER 38 2185
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an ARSI AR 2 BFR R ALFEREEE
appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. EEEcaBEEE  HEBRRETRUT
This presumption can only be rebutted in the following two MEARER T HER:

limited circumstances:

e when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of e EEFEERUKNRNRESE;
revenue; or

e when it can be demonstrated that revenue and . FHBEFEEZ R EREZHE
consumption of the economic benefits of the *Um;ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ:nrﬁgﬁ?ﬁ i o

intangible asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods ZEBITABR=-ZF-—R"F-—A—BH
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group ZERBR2EEHNERAER - BAl &
uses the straight-line method for depreciation for its plant SERAESER EMBRREETIT
and equipment. The directors of the Company believe that E-AQRESHE BEREARREE
the straight-line method is the most appropriate method to EENKRBENZANEBRENTEER L
reflect the consumption of economic benefits inherent in the Hit EANHERBESTERFIERE
respective assets and accordingly, the application of these BRI ER B38BT AR ME AR E
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 has had no material ENFEMBBRRBEREATE -

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate

financial statements:

. at cost;

. in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (or
HKAS 39 for entities that have not yet adopted HKFRS
9); or

o using the equity method as described in HKAS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of

investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to
be an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it
shall account for the change from the date when the change

in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have
a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial

statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B@E=Z—tF=A=1+—HILLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

The application of the other new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and position for the current and prior
years and on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?

HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Insurance Contracts?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets

(Amendments) between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture*
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16

HKAS 7 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 22

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers?

Leases’

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

Transfers of Investment Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration?
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L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with earlier application permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

R-ZE—tF-F AR zEBARZE
EHEER RFREEM-
RZBE-N\F-A—HHZEHBZE
EHBEER AFREER-
R-Z-—NF-B - Bz EBBRZE
EHEER RFREEM-
REEEZ PRz EHBE-EESHHB
£ e
RZE—tF-—A—HHI =T N\F—
B— Bz #BRzEFEHBEN W
B

2016/2017 F3 HEEREERBRHERLE

85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEHmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=Z—tF=A=1+—HILLFE

86

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a fair value through other
comprehensive income measurement category for certain

simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the Group

are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAMIIREEITTEEMEH
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING FHAN([HFEMBEHEEDN])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued -8
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments - continued FEEMBEREENFERLEMT A

— i

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities” credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through

profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to

have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=Z—tF=A=1+—HILLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

o The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk

management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may impact the amount reported
and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect until a detailed review has

been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BERAHITREEITERAMER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEN([FEBMEREEN])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued — 18

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to HKFRS 10:

o An exception from the general requirement of full gain o

or loss recognition has been introduced into HKFRS

FEMBHREE10MREFESHER
B8k (BRI F ) REFHEANEL
PSS L RCHHEXRTHKETE
BRBMBREERE 105 2B

BEMBHRELENFI10FESIAR
HEABRE 2 —RUERE2FI5ME

10 for the loss control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business in a transaction with an associate or
a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method.

New guidance has been introduced requiring that
gains or losses resulting from those transactions are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement at fair value of
investments retained in any former subsidiary that
has become an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method are recognised
in the former parent’'s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new

associate or joint venture.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture — continued
Amendments to HKAS 28:

o The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint
venture have been amended to relate only to assets

that do not constitute a business.

o A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets
that constitute a business between an entity and its
associate or joint venture must be recognised in full in

the investor’s financial statements.

o A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in
separate transactions constitute a business and should

be accounted for as a single transaction.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 will have a material impact on the Group's consolidated

financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers - continued

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of

HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the other new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether the other new
and revised HKFRSs, will have a significant impact on the

Group's financial performance and position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements, are discussed in Note 4.

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements is set out below:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial instruments and investment property
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration of given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the

Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Ffinancial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRSs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment

would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that

existed at the acquisition date.
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the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Goodwiill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s CGUs (or groups of CGUs) that is

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEHmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, using the straight line
method, over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates are as follows:

3.
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EMT

Leasehold improvements Over lease term HEHEE REHR
Motor vehicle 20% RE 20%
Office equipment 20% WMAEXRE 20%
Medicine equipment 20% BEXE 20%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit and loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they

may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill - continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEHmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for the short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables and others receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in die number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately
as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company's own equity instruments is an

equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=Z—tF=A=1+—HILLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

3.

EXEMHBRBE-&

Financial instruments — continued EMIA—-&
Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued HMEABRREBEFEIA-&
Convertible notes — continued AR — 4

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the

instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium/other equity. When the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible notes,
the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
retained profits/other equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion

option.
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Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible Eﬁi?é AR EBEMEE 2R Z RATI R
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components PiEE] ﬁ%‘ EZ’J} Lo BEEER
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. szl—"‘:?ﬂﬂ 2 MERE 23X B A TS
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are EETJ’A’F’EETJE cHEEHIHEZRS

recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability component and are amortised over the lives of

the convertible notes using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
bank borrowings and convertible notes) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

3.

EXEMHBRBE-&

Financial instruments — continued EMTHR-—&
Derecognition EERERR

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition — continued

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and pledged bank deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
positions, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand

and at banks, which are not restricted to use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ==

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and

costs,

if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

Provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services

Revenue from provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services is recognised when the services are

provided;

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the

original effective interest rate; and

Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,

these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes for the employees of the Group’s overseas entities
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit
plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
separate entities such as social security plans in the PRC,
and the Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if any of the funds do not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The
Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are

recognised in the financial year to which they relate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income items that are never

taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax — continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax - continued

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they related to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value of the expenditures expected to be

required to settle the obligations.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

- continued

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a

provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain

events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is

virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to

interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

J exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary

items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &Z2=Z—t&F=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which they

are incurred.

Related party transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group, if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries is related to the

others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE=Z—tF=A=1+—HILLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions — continued
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: — continued

(iii)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employees are

also related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ==

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions - continued

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: — continued

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influence by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner,

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(c) dependants of the person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms

of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights is stated as
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of interest in
leasehold land are amortised on a straight line basis over the

relevant interest in leasehold land.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purpose). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the net
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial information, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EX®HBEREBE-—#&
POLICIES - continued

Segment reporting - continued SHMBE &

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated RUBHREMS  BHEZNEE DB
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have BREANR BRIZSESHNKBESER
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of I BERSNERKRBEEMEE £ETRF
the nature of products and services, the nature of production ME - EPREAUSEE SHEEMRIIEMH
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used BRBNLEREEREMES T EMEE
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the HomER RERMNEE 7B AE L
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments ARBOHE AAEHR—EHREIH -
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4. EXEEHER G5

AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.

(@) Income taxes and deferred taxation
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
tax authorities. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(b) Useful lives and impairment of property,

(c)

plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience,
the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in
the market demands or service output of the assets.
The Group also performs annual reviews on whether
the assumptions made on useful lives continue to be
valid. The Group tests annually whether the assets have
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of
an asset or a cash generating unit is determined based
on value in use calculations which require the use of

assumptions and estimates.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs are determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-tax discount
rates, and other assumptions underlying the value-in-

use calculations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(d)

(e)

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor balances
are collectible and follow up actions are promptly
carried out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the Group may
experience delays in collection. Where recoverability of
trade debtor balances are called into doubts, specific
provisions for bad and doubtful debts are made
based on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances and write-off
history. Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade receivables for which provisions

are not made could affect the results of operations.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is
individually determined at the end of each reporting
period based on its market value and by adopting
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method
assumes each of these properties is capable of being
sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market
condition, the fair value of the investment properties

will change in the future.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. #MTIA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EENBSHEMIA
2017 2016
—E2—+t% —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FiERT
Financial assets MEBERE
Loans and receivables ER R ERFIE
— trade and other receivables -~ B RHEMEBWRIE 176,781 233,593
— amounts due from fellow - EBRE R B
subsidiaries ACIEQE| - 8,181
— cash and cash equivalents - RekHESEEER 93,721 203,500
— pledged bank deposits - 2ERRITER 10,156 6,096
280,658 451,370
Financial liabilities MBAR
At amortised cost 1R 18 85 A AR
— trade and other payables —B 5 R HMESKIE 161,644 215,166
— amount due to the ultimate —EARAZERARRIE
holding company - 485
— amounts due to fellow o SNICTEN ) NG E
subsidiaries - 10,802
— bank borrowings —RITERK 59,342 32,396
— convertible notes — AR EE 83,369 77,267
304,355 336,116
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, trade and other payables, bank
borrowings, convertible notes, amount due to the
ultimate holding company and amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries. The details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk. The directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group's financial assets.
No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to

credit risk.
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eMI AR
(b) MERREEZEARRBR &

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk - continued

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in the PRC. The Group also
has concentration of credit risk by customers as
approximately 23.8% of total trade receivables were
due from the Group's five largest customers as at 31
March 2017 (2016: 20.7%).

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
on a timely basis and adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts overdue. In this
regards, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are mainly deposited in the state controlled
PRC banks which the directors assessed the credit risk

to be insignificant.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available
to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it results
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets and
liabilities. The Group will consistently maintain a
prudent financial policy and ensure that it maintains

sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Liquidity risk - continued
The following tables detail Group's contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities which are the earliest dates of the
Group can be required to pay. The tables include both

interest and principal cash flows.

emMI AR
(b) MERREEZEARRBR &

W )W & W B -

THRAJNFAEENBEREEHBRS L
FH LXRBRBAKRERFARE
AU BEBERMARERER
B TREFEMNERTERERE

Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
mEEY BEXE FHRERS
ERfE R—%R Ba-F RERT WREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTET FTERT
As at 31 March 2017 RIB-t£ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables EoREMERRE - 161,644 - 161,644 161,644
Bank borrowings RITEN 6.39 60,862 - 60,862 59,342
Convertible notes TRREE 3.1 83,369 - 83,369 83,369
305,875 - 305,875 304,355
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or within Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
MEFH RERY FURRE
BBNE R-FR BB RELE RHEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THER THER
As at 31 March 2016 R-ZE-R"E=ZA=t-H
Trade and other payables ESREMEMTRE = 215,166 - 215,166 215,166
Amount due to the ultimate holding B RAERDAFTE
company - 485 - 485 485
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZKE A RFHE = 10,802 - 10,802 10,802
Bank borrowings BITEH 5.99 33,911 - 33,911 32,396
Convertible notes TRRZEE 13.11 - 84,292 84,292 77,267
260,364 84,292 344,656 336,116
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has available
unutilised short and medium term bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$47,485,000 (2016:
HK$20,878,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (Note
32). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of benchmark interest
rates published by the People’s Bank of China for the

Group's RMB denominated borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 &Z2=Z—t&F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. #MTH-&
(b) HERBREEEERBE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
throughout the reporting period is used internally for

assessment of possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$Nil (2016: HK$22,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest

rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s

functional currency.

The main operations of the Group were in the PRC and
most of the transactions were denominated in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the foreign currency
denominated of commercial transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group has no significant direct exposure
to foreign currencies as most of the commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
a currency as the functional currency of each entity of

the Group.
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eMI AR
(b) MERREEZEARRBR &

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Currency risk - continued

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Fair value measurement
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i)  The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices

respectively.

(i) The fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flows analysis using observable

and/or unobservable inputs).

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term

nature of these financial statements.

1 40 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

W R &

FAEERRLTETAEEINER
5 BERBENINEHFERRK-
AEBSRERAINERAR I
EREFTERZEHPERINER

B o

AFEiH R
BB EE R A MmN AT ER
TARER:

(i) MR R R L RE R
TEEBENYBEERUKE
BNAFETI DS ETEH

BEE-

H
‘I
i

(iy HtMBEERMBER (T
BEMEIR) 22FERRD
REEEN (FlERTHE
R/RFABEEE 2 BERR
EREDH) MEE -

HttBEEREENREERE
SEAARE BEHRZE B HRE
BREEH MEREEREQAFE
EE=K



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &Z2=Z—t&F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. @M IR —i#
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREREARRBK &

policies — continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the RIFEHMBRARABRRBZLFE

consolidated statement of financial position RtE

The Group’s financial instruments that are measured AEBRANTERBREATFETE

subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are MNERmMITADREAFENITEE

grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to BEDR RE3IR-

which the fair value is observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived e IMATENEERREEE
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets REENERMISENRE (R

for identical assets or liabilities; R HEEY;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or
out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. EMIR-&

(c) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and () HFEBIBERELANTFEHEZ
financial liabilities that are not measured at *REAMBEEERMBARZL
fair value on recurring basis FE
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors BERA BRTRAAFREN FTA
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets RENBREANVBEERMEE
and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated BEzRAEEEAEEES-
financial statements approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

R-2—-t£=A=+—H R-ZE-"E=ZRA=1+-H
Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
BEE LFE REE AYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT T TR
Financial liability HEAR
Convertible notes TEREE 83,369 83,180 77,267 75,055
6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BFXEABRER

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the reporting period.

The Group monitors capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group
overall strategy remains unchanged during the reporting

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 6.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (bank
borrowings and convertible notes), cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

BERBETE-®
AEBNEFRBOEES (RITERR
TRRER) RERASEEEAUR
RN DGR AR (RESRITRA
Ri#E) -

2017 2016

—E—tfF —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHExT

Debts (Note (a)) B (KiEE(a)) 142,711 109,663

Cash and cash equivalents HehBEeSEER (93,721) (203,500)

Net debt/(cash) B (B&)FHE 48,990 (93,837)

Equity (Note (b)) R (MizEb)) 188,111 222,744

Gearing ratio EEBEBLLE 0.26 N/A T & A
Notes: it & -

(@)  Debts represented by bank borrowings and convertible notes
as set out in Notes 32 and 33 respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners
of the Company.

(a) EHEME32RMEE330 BIAMEART
EBRRATRRERE -

(b) EHEVEADXAVEEAERGEHNAEES
R fiti i
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e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENT

Information reported internally to the chief operating

decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance focuses on types of

goods or services delivered or provided. The Group organised

into three operating divisions: (a) pharmaceutical wholesale

and distribution business, (b) pharmaceutical retail chain

business and (c) hemodialysis treatment and consultancy

service business in the PRC. These divisions are the basis on

which the Group reports its segment information.

Segment revenue and results
For the year ended 31 March 2017

BEESW
MEZLBERREALZR/AEERD
BERFEDBRAZEN DEERAR
NHREHR—z2ERPBREEE - A EEHAS
REEEEDE AR E 2 (a) % m it 3
RoHER OEMRTEEHEL R
MRENEERBHARB RS - 2S5 E
DASEZBHESBENZER -

SRBRRER
BE_Z—tF=AZ=t+—HL=EE

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and Pharmaceutical consultancy
distribution retail chain service
business business business Eliminations Consolidated
ERHRR ERTE I % 3E ¥ i
DHER EHEE  RENBHEER HY e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FT#T FTH#T FET
Revenue ERE
External sales HIMNEE 728,805 257,035 69 - 985,909
Inter-segment sales PEEHE 18,225 - - (18,225) -
Total revenue EolE 2] 747,030 257,035 69 (18,225) 985,909
Inter-segment sales are charged SEBHEENRAF
at arm’s length HEWE
Results E 1
Segment results PEXE 4,270 (9,065) (224) - (5,019)
Unallocated other revenue Ao Bz Bt 2
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBARZER (326)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBzLEZH (4,591)
Loss from operations REFE (9,934)
Finance costs BRER (14,441)
Loss before taxation BB AR (24,375)
Taxation BB (1,350)
Loss for the year AEEFE (25,725)

1 44 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017




7.

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment revenue and results - continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

EENE-&
DHEMBRREE &
BE-ZE—X"E=A=+t—HLFE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale Pharmaceutical
and distribution retail chain
business business Eliminations Consolidated
ERMER EmETE
DEHER EEER e oe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TER TET TERr
Revenue ExE
External sales HIMEE 1,083,341 238,422 - 1,321,763
Inter-segment sales STHEHEE 37,010 28,772 (65,782) =
Total Revenue BExE 1,120,351 267,194 (65,782) 1,321,763
Inter-segment sales are charged PERBHENEAT
at arm’s length HEKE
Results E 1 |
Segment results DEEE 12,634 (3,514) = 9,120
Unallocated other revenue RoWzHf kR 186
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-HWBARZEE (772)
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMZLELH (4,473)
Profit from operations ReEZEHEA 4,061
Finance costs BBEH (16,365)
Loss before taxation R AEE (12,304)
Taxation BB (1,158)
Loss for the year rEERE (13,462)

2016/2017 53 EESEEZEBRERALF 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7. BERE-&

Segment assets and liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

PHRERAR

R-2—tF£=RA=+—8H

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and Pharmaceutical consultancy
distribution retail chain service
business business business Consolidated
I 7 & 4
ERHER ERTE AEREN
PHEE EHEE REES oy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TET FTET
Consolidated statement of RAMBERAE
financial position
Assets BE
Segment assets 2HERE 395,085 143,036 21,866 559,987
Unallocated corporate assets RPBeLEEE 352
Consolidated total assets GREEME 560,339
Liabilities aff
Segment liabilities FEEE 169,873 62,381 4,681 236,935
Convertible notes TRKRERE 83,369
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEEE 80
Unallocated corporate liabilities APBeLEEE 2,171
Consolidated total liabilities REBEAT 322,555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities - continued

As at 31 March 2016

7. EESE-®
AERERAR-®
R-B-AE=ZA=+-8

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Consolidated
BRRtER BnTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TER TER
Consolidated statement of financial position $&MBEKAE
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 473,700 148,952 622,652
Unallocated corporate assets APE2EERE 24,146
Consolidated total assets RREEMHE 646,798
Liabilities ffi
Segment liabilities PEEE 204,516 70,843 275,359
Convertible notes CIE: Y ES 77,267
Deferred tax liabilities EEREESE 563
Unallocated corporate liabilities roBEebEER 3,085
Consolidated total liabilities REEEHE

356,274
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H&Z=Z—

7.

tF=A=1+—

HIEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued
Other segment information
For the year ended 31 March 2017

7. BESE-—&

Hftt 5 A EH

BE_Z—tF=AZ=+—HL=EE

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale  Pharmaceutical consultancy
and distribution retail chain service
business business business Unallocated Consolidated
ERERR EREE I % 3% ¥ i
AHMEE EHEE REMREEHR ROE o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THT THT THET
Other information HithE#
Capital expenditure (Note) BARRY (M) 1,704 4,257 - 6 5,967
Depreciation nE 1,532 4,305 138 16 5,991
Amortisation of prepaid lease BAAEEHERS
payments - 366 - - 366
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment REZER 240 400 - - 640
Impairment loss recognised in HE S REMEKTE
respect of trade and other BRAZHESR
receivables - 1,508 - - 1,508
Reversal of impairment loss FE SN LM HIRR
recognised in respect of trade RAEEERE
and other receivables (890) - - - (890)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBLATZER 326 - - _ 326
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE-ZE-—XR"E=ZA=+—HLFE
Pharmaceutical
wholesale Pharmaceutical
and distribution retail chain
business busmess Unallocated Consolidated
ERBBER ERT
DEER ﬁiﬁ%"}% A RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TER TET BT
Other information HitEH
Capital expenditure (Note) EREE (M) 245 11,646 - 11,891
Depreciation neE 1,847 4,601 1 6,449
Amortisation of prepaid lease BABERERS
payments - 365 - 365
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment REZER 14 323 - 337
Impairment loss recognised in respect  F 8 5 & E 1 KFE
of trade and other receivables ERZREER 519 657 - 1,176
Reversal of impairment loss BnE 7 REfERZERD
recognised in respect of trade and REBBRE
other receivables (580) (103) - (683)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNE AR 2EE 772 - - 772
Change in fair value of RENEZATEEE
investment property - 490 - 490
Note: B -

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and prepaid lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Other segment information - continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment results represent the profit or loss generated by
each segment without allocation of finance costs, loss on
disposal of a subsidiary and taxation. Unallocated corporate
expenses mainly include directors’ remuneration and other
central administration costs. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of

resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated
corporate assets mainly include cash and cash
equivalents and office equipment of the central
administration companies. Goodwill is allocated to

reportable segments as described in Note 21.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than convertible notes, deferred tax liabilities and
unallocated corporate liabilities. Unallocated corporate
liabilities mainly include the amount due to the
ultimate holding company, accruals and other payables

of the central administration companies.

EESN-&

Htt > HEH -

AHRED B BT BREM Az A
SEETRE-—H -2 EXEREIHE
E2ENRER THARYBER -HE
—BNBLRAZERRREAZDE - RD
BEBitXMXTEaRESHMEREtH
REBEM - WUIRERTBER D ERR
A EELEERRERE 258

REESERARIES ERERMS :

s BRAIBZLREEIN FIBEEE
HOBEAREI B - KB 2h
REETRREPREEQFAZH
ERBAESEEHERPAIRE -
WK EE2 1l B 2 EE TR

-
EHE-

s BRUBRREB BEZEHRBEEBERR
TEEEEEN FEAEHIE
EAUBREI R - A B2EXER
TEERRANBRRERDANRE
PREEBARZESFTEAREAME
R/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7. BESE-&
Geographical information HEEH
The Group operates in three principal areas — pharmaceutical AEBR=ZEEEZEEHLE -EPEK
wholesale and distribution business, pharmaceutical retail EHAMBROHER HRTEEHEE
chain business and hemodialysis treatment and consultancy BRORENAERBARBEBLERE
service business in the PRC and administrative activity EBREEHWER-

operates in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue is solely generated from external REEZRBEZIBRERPBEINIBER

customers in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carryings amount of non- UTAREEMEMWEI M Z2HERBE
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which EZREED M

the assets are located:

Carrying amounts of

non-current assets

FRBDEEZ
IRmEE

2017 2016
—Z—tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT TET
Hong Kong BB 14 24
PRC AR 168,217 37,248
168,231 37,272
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &Z2=Z—t&F=A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7.

Information about major customers
For the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no single

customers contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue.

Revenue from major products
The Group's revenue from its major products were stated in

Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE 8.

The Group's revenue represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

The revenue is as follows:

BEESE-—#&
ﬁﬁiiﬁﬁzgﬁ
BE-_Z—tHR= ni—
ALFE #iE|E—
BE10%E M ko

D)a
m
HE
St
mon
B o
[Nl
=+
B |

FEERZES
AEBFTEERZRBHRGES BB R
FHFEES ©

g
AEENRBERENREERRX S T
BRERNCERRBRFE - WBENT

2017 2016
—Z2—tfF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT THExT
Retail of pharmaceutical and ZnRNHBEERZSE
related products 257,035 238,422
Wholesale and distribution of ZoREBERMBERDE
pharmaceutical and related products 728,805 1,083,341
Provision of hemodialysis treatment and R MR E R E R ZH RS
consultancy services 69 =
985,909 1,321,763
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10.

e M B |RERME
For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 =Z2—+tF=A=+—HLEE
9. OTHER REVENUE 9. Hftlr
2017 2016
—Z—tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Interest income B U A 361 220
Rental income HEWA 281 2,289
Sundry income MW A 2,940 2,491
3,582 5,000
OTHER GAIN AND LOSS, NET 10. Ettk R REGIR ' B8
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTERT
Reversal of impairment loss of trade B ZRWHIE Z B EEERE
receivables 890 683
Change in fair value of investment property REYE 2 N FEEF - (490)
Exchange gain AL 740 2,674
Loss on disposal of property, HEVX BRERKZHEZEE
plant and equipment (640) (337)
990 2,530
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11. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

The Group's (loss)/profit for the year from operations is

arrived at after charging:

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

1. ESEBE(BE) &%
AEESSEBSER (BR) RN
SR T AR &EN

2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHE T
Staff costs: BEITER:
Employee benefits expense (including EERRBEX
directors’ emoluments (Note 13): (BEESME (MEFE13)):
Salaries and allowances e RERM 81,711 65,200
Retirement scheme contributions BRINEFHEIER 8,323 8,725
90,034 73,925
Other items: HMtEA :
Depreciation of property, M BMERRETE
plant and equipment (Note 18) (KfEE18) 5,991 6,449
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FEAEERE#ESE (HEE19)
(Note 19) 366 365
Auditors’ remuneration 2B RN &
— audit services —BZR 987 987
— non-audit services —EEZRB - =
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAE 859,640 1,175,635
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HESZREMEWRIERRZ
trade and other receivables REEE 1,508 1,176
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 26) HE—BEH B AR ZEE
(BY=E26) 326 772
Operating lease rentals in respect of MIWREFILEHERS
land and building 27,841 29,609
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e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. ¥ EH
2017 2016
—Z—tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T8t

Interest on: LLTHEB 2R L :

— Bank borrowings —RITEE 4,127 8,088
— Convertible notes - BRREE 10,314 8,277
14,441 16,365

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEFHM

Pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the aggregate amounts of emoluments paid by EEZZE
the companies now comprising the Group to the directors of

the Company during the reporting period are as follows:

BB LHRIREB DR RARAS

DARBERBZFTFAL

BAES ZHMAEMT :

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ExT FTHBT

Fees we 315 315
Other emoluments: Hi S :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He RBEREBEYRR 596 417

Retirement scheme contributions BARE B X 24 17

Total Hol 935 749
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ==

13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS - continued

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company

13. EFH

BN — &

—tF=A=1t—HILFE

ARABABEERBENB zHMFB W

during the reporting period are as follows: T:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Fees benefits in kind contributions Total
e RUR
fag Enfa RS EIR #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FiET FTHET FTHET FiET
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HE_Z—+t#f
ZRA=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chen Jinshan (CEANp - 60 - 60
Ms. Shum Ngai Pan (Note (b)) BB L L (KiE(b)) - 36 2 38
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Note (c)) BEBELT (M) - 360 18 378
Ms. Jiang Xiangfeng (Note (d)) TR EE (HEEd) - 81 4 85
Mr. Chiu King Yan (Note (e)) BRI EE (HEEe) - 59 - 59
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHITEE:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit BEALE 120 - - 120
Dr. Liu Yongping %ﬂ%?tﬁi 120 - - 120
Mr. Liang Yichi (Note (f)) =t (iE f 73 - - 73
Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie (Note (g)) R EE (M 2 - - 2
315 596 24 935
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Fees benefits in kind contributions Total
He OEHR
we ENFR BARGTEIBR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET TET TER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 ~ BE=ZE—R%F
=SA=+-HLEEE
Executive directors: HITEE
M. Yung Ka Chun (Note (a)) SEELE (K@) - 7 = 7
Mr. Chen Jinshan REWLxE - 60 - 60
Ms. Shum Ngai Pan (Note (b)) WHRZ L (MF(D) - 114 6 120
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Note (c)) SEELT (M) - 236 11 247
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTEE:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit BEALE 120 - - 120
Dr. Liu Yongping HEYEL 120 - - 120
Mr. Liang Yichi R—jhEE 75 - - 75
315 417 17 749
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e BEmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued 13. EEHH &
Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company AAREESERBRENBE2HFHMFERED
during the reporting period are as follows: — continued T:—#&
Notes: BT :

(@ Mr. Yung Ka Chun was appointed as executive director on 10
October 2014 and resigned on 20 April 2015.

PEELEER-ZE—NFE+A+HE
EZERHVTES IR-_Z-HFOA
—t+HEHE-

(b)  Ms. Shum Ngai Pan was appointed as executive director on 20 (b) MBELZITR=-Z-—AFTHA=-+HE

April 2015 and resigned on 20 July 2016. EZERBITEST UIR-_ZF—XFEtA
—+H#HE-

(© Ms. Yung Ka Lai was appointed as executive director on 5 (0 SPEEBZIR-Z—HEFNAEBEZR
August 2015. ERITES-

(d)  Mr. Jiang Xiangfeng was appointed as executive director on (d IHABREER-Z—XRFLtA-t+HE
20 July 2016 and resigned on 24 March 2017. ZRERWTESE IR=_ZF—tF=A

“+OHEEE-

()  Mr. Chiu King Yan was appointed as executive director on 6 (e) HBIC-EER-ZT—tHF=A~BEZ
March 2017. EARITES-

(f)  Mr. Liang Yichi was appointed as independent non-executive f) R-MEERZZS-—_—FHhANAEZ
director on 4 September 2012 and resigned on 24 March ERABILIHTES UR-_Z—tF
2017. ZA-+tmHEE

(g)  Mr. Fok Wai Ming Eddie was appointed as independent non- (99 EBEERAEER=-"Z—tF=A=+UWEH

executive director on 24 March 2017.

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, none of
the directors and chief executive officer of the Company

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

During the year, no emoluments have been paid to the
directors and chief executive officer of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation.
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e KRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

14. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS 14. EREM&

Senior management emoluments and five highest EREEARHMEREIBEREHFER
paid employees

The five highest paid individuals during the year included FREBRESHEEERE B (ZZE—~
one director (2016: one) and the details of whose F —R)ES HMEHBEARLX
remuneration are set out in Note 13 above. The details of MEE13 - B THHE(ZFE—RF: MA)
the emoluments of the remaining four (2016: four) highest BeHES (REWMFAATRESBIEE
paid individuals who are neither director nor chief executive BETBRAB) 2MESFBUT:

officer of the Company are as follows:

2017 2016

—Z—tf —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THExT

Salaries and other emoluments HFehHEMME 1,657 1,540

Retirement scheme contributions RKGE R B 62 56

1,719 1,596

The number of these non-directors, highest paid employees ZEHES BoFEENFHANFUT
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as gi[E :

follows:

2017 2016

—E—tf§ —E-REF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 0%1,000,00058 T 4 4
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

14. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS - continued 14. BEM& -8
The emoluments of the senior management (excluding ARAAEREERE (TERES) NHHN
directors) of the Company are within the following band. NFLUTEE -
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-REF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 T 6 6
During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no BE-Z—+tFER-F-—R"E=ZA=1+—
emoluments were paid by the Group to senior management BEFE AEETELDSREEENE
or any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement AhBEeHREENEHM  UERREI
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for MEEAREESNMBBNER S EABRE
loss of office. BE-
15. TAXATION 15. R\
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTHET FET
Current tax: BOEAFH 18 ¢
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HhEERER 1,833 2,524
Deferred tax: IERERIE ¢
— Current year credit (Note 34) - REEER (MIE34) (483) (1,366)
1,350 1,158
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e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

15. TAXATION - continued

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which

members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Provision on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

The National People’s Congress which was concluded on
16 March 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law was
approved and became effective from 1 January 2008. The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification
of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and foreign-

invested enterprises at 25%.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31 March
2017 and 2016. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made as the Group did not have assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax (2016: Nil).

15. RIE—4&

AEEARAKEERELAAMEREE
FRERERBEERRE 2GR RE
BEEHMER -

Hith B 2 BRBUB A BB RAKEE
EERR2BTRERBHERE LA
2EREME-

RZZBZLFE=ZA+TASBERNZ2EA
RREASEEL PECEMER AR
BE WYH-_ZTTN\F-—A—HBRER-
RECEMEBASIA—RIIEE  BIF
BRRABRARERMELCENRE
BHEFE—H25% °

REFEEERERE BB NF -
A—RE BHEFEKINARANE-F
ENEFEFERDNENZAFHEIMNR
REBREHB10%WTENFAER - HRE
EREMALBFEZEPERAED
25%RENREE KBRS %HEER
o HRAKEE T EARITH—
BEEBEMALNREEZERATDERE
BE MAEEES%HNEERZHAHR
HeHRAKE AR BRO TR
BB - B A R EBERA AT R % SR 43 (=] T s
R MU BERZE RN B 2 TR EH
fEHIESER TH B o

EBNEHEBE_E—tER-ZT—R
F=ZA=1+—BLFEZEERBUER
#916.5% =T & o B R A 52 B 3 AR BR AU ZE 4
MBEBRNEH 2ERBRH WA BRE
BRERTREBE (22 —RF &)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

15. TAXATION - continued 15. MIA— R
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands REHERERABELHBEZRAIR
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to AR AEEBESMRTAEERERR
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin BELZESMEH -
Islands.
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss FERAAARREKEB DR FEDE 2
before taxation using the statutory rate for the location in ERENEERRRBEABEZEH
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the R ERERBEAE 2R BRI %
tax expenses at the effective tax rate are as follows: BRIOT -
2017 2016
—ZE—tf A
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THExT
Loss before taxation MR AT 18 (24,375) (12,304)
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated RBEMBEH EEEEEH 2
at the rates applicable to profits in the tax =& F9E AR R E R AT
jurisdiction concerned A B EBIE (4,736) (1,942)
Tax effect of expenses and income not AA IR B ERB
deductible or taxable for tax purposes MR ANTEEE 562 (1,321)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REANBEBENHESE 5,524 4,421
Taxation IR 1,350 1,158
16. DIVIDENDS 16. BB
The directors of the Company do not recommend the RAREEFERERBE-_Z—t&=
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 B=+—HILEFENEMRE (ZZ2—X
(2016: Nil). FoE)-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

17. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 17. L FIHAAEESREBR
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+t% —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Loss for the year FREHER
Loss attributable to owners of KABHEEAEEER
the Company for the purpose of (AUGHEERELRERE)
basic loss per share calculation (25,792) (13,802)
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E-RE
Number of shares iz & H
Weighted average number of shares IR 13 I 7 19 IR B
for the purpose of basic loss per share (BUGtHEESRERER) 648,405,300 | 648,405,300
For the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, diluted loss BE_ZE—tFR-Z—R"F=ZR=+—
per share is the same as the basic loss per share as the BILEFE AATTESREEEBI AR
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the FRHMARAB ZERITEABRBREE R
conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible notes EREHNBE_Z—tER=-F—
since it would result in an anti-dilutive effect on loss per FZA=1T—HILFEZBREBEK
share during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016. REETE NEREEFIREGRER

BRMAER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ME -BERKE

Leasehold Office Medicine Motor
improvement equipment equipment vehicle Total
HEMERE N3 BRRH RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TERr TERr
Cost 583
As at 1 April 2015 RZE-RFEMA—H 11,025 24,973 - 4,530 40,528
Additions wE 1,896 2,018 - 43 3,957
Disposals HE - (598) = (68) (666)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FE AR
(Note 26) (HizE26) - (284) - - (284)
Exchange realignment B R AE (1,305) (1,449) = (255) (3,009)
As at 31 March 2016 and R-E-RF
1 April 2016 =A=t+-H
R-E-RF
MmA—H 11,616 24,660 - 4,250 40,526
Additions hE 1,822 3,663 - 482 5,967
Disposals HE = (1,048) = (551) (1,599)
Acquired on acquisition of RBERE AR EEA
subsidiaries (Note 25) (F&E25) 1,355 149 10,983 = 12,487
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—BE AR
(Note 26) (HtzE26) - (2,029) - - (2,029)
Exchange realignment B 5 A (792) (1,721) = (282) (2,795)
As at 31 March 2017 R-E—-+F
=H=1+—H 14,001 23,674 10,983 3,899 52,557
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
As at 1 April 2015 RZE-RFEMNA—H 4,405 11,804 - 1,797 18,006
Charge for the year EREMER 2,820 3,145 - 484 6,449
Written back on disposals R SRR E - (275) - (54) (329)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRBAR
(Note 26) (KizF26) - (62) - = (62)
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% (987) (811) - (124) (1,922)
As at 31 March 2016 and RIE-—RE
1 April 2016 =ZA=+-A
R-Z-RE
MA—H 6,238 13,801 - 2,103 22,142
Charge for the year EREMER 2,372 3,080 122 417 5,991
Written back on disposals R E R E - (620) - (288) (908)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RREAR
(Note 26) (MzE26) - (284) - - (284)
Exchange realignment B R AE (481) (1,061) 3) (157) (1,702)
As at 31 March 2017 R-ZE-+tF
EE=Er=04 8,129 14,916 119 2,075 25,239
Net book value RESE
As at 31 March 2017 R-B—t&
SHI=SESIH 5,872 8,758 10,864 1,824 27,318
As at 31 March 2016 R-Z—5~F
=A=t+—H 5,378 10,859 - 2,147 18,384
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2016/2017 &3]

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. AFHBERRA
Total
gt
HK$'000
FET
Cost 5% 3
As at 1 April 2015 R-ZZE-—HFEMNA—H 7,083
Additions nNE 7,934
Exchange realignment fE X% (523)
As at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZBE—-RFE=ZA=+—0K
—E-AXFWMA—-H 14,494
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (872)
As at 31 March 2017 R-ZE—tF=A=+—H 13,622
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
As at 1 April 2015 R-ZE—-—HRFMA—H 2,553
Charge for the year FRE R 365
Exchange realignment R (136)
As at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 R=B-R"F=ZRA=+—HEK
—E-RENMA—H 2,782
Charge for the year FREMKR 366
Exchange realignment E LR (168)
As at 31 March 2017 R=-Z—+tF=H=+—H 2,980
Net book value RSB E
As at 31 March 2017 BW-ZE—tf£=A=+—H 10,642
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—RE=HA=+—H 11,712
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+F=A=1t—HILFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS - continued 19. BRIEERE &

2017 2016
—B—tHF | ZZF-—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TExT
Analysed for reporting purpose as: SHEL2|AE:
— Current assets (included in trade and -RBEE (GFAEBSZR
other receivables and deposits) HtEWRIERIZS)
(Note 23) (By&E23) 366 365
— Non-current assets —EREBERE 10,276 11,347
10,642 11,712

As at 31 March 2017, the amount of approximately R=Z—tHF=A=+—H8" 49,664,000
HK$9,664,000 (2016: HK$10,623,000) are pledged as BT (ZE—7xHF 110,623,000 7T) 2%
collaterals for Group's bank borrowings, details please refer HOEBERARERITEE 2IEF R 7

Note 32. 1BE 2 HKEE32 -

AEERANAEREERURTE L
MEREZNR -HEL B Z2HAERR35

The Group's prepaid lease payments amounts represent

the payments for land use rights situated in the PRC. The

leasehold lands have lease term of 35 to 40 years and the
Group has processed the land use rights of the leasehold

land during the lease term.

Amortisation on prepaid lease payments of approximately
HK$366,000 (2016: approximately HK$365,000) have been
charged to the administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 20. B ME
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Completed investment property ERIREME 6,766 7,199
At fair value BOAFE

As at 1 April RMMAB—H 7,199 8,093
Fair value change NEEEE - (490)
Exchange realignment BN A (433) (404)
As at 31 March R=B=+—H 6,766 7,199

Note: B & -

The investment property with net book value of approximately
HK$6,766,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$7,199,000) is pledged as collaterals for the Group’s bank
borrowings, please refer to Note 32.

(a)

Valuation of investment property

The investment property amounted of approximately
HK$6,766,000 of the Group were stated at fair value
as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$7,199,000). The fair
value were arrived at based on the valuations carried
out by an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers, Asset Appraisals Limited, (“AAL"), who have
among their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of the properties being values. The valuations
conform to the Valuation Standards published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The completed
investment property has been valued using the direct

comparison approach.

R-ZEBE—+tE=ZBA=+—H REYVER
HEE46,766,0008B T (ZE—ANF 4
7,199,000 T ) B EHEREERTHEE 2K
Ao FRESBME32 -

() BMEYPRZMHE
R-ZE—tF=A=+—HB &%
[E%496,766,000/8 T (= F— R F .
7,199,000/ T ) Z R EWFHER A F
BIR - AFEDREABILSE
KEEGEMPAREEETERRD
BRAQT (TAALL) FrfEEEME
EoETAMAEENAMIBERS
BHEMBEEEs WHETHE
MEZNEBERBHNERTHGERZ
BR-ERMERSCEEBIEMES
HRZEEER -BERTITRENE
FERAEELEB R ETHE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+F=A=1t—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued

(a) Valuation of investment property - continued (a)

20. REME-—E
BEMEZHE-E

The direct comparison approach is adopted where
comparison based on recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot using market
data which is publicly available without significant
adjustments being made to the market observable
data of comparable properties is made. A significant
increase in the sales price of comparable properties
would result in significant increase in fair value, and

vice versa.

At each of reporting year end date, the management
will (i) verify all major inputs to the independent
valuation report; (ii) assess property valuations
movement when compared to the prior year valuation
report; and (iii) hold discussion with the independent

valuers.

There had been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair
value of the property, the highest and best use of the

property is their current use.

(b) The analysis of the carrying amount of

investment property is as follows:

(b)

RAERLE: ERBAELR
MEFRIARITB 2T ERBRE
FLRREBREEFE ZOMEERN
RzmE8BEELE  BREA
BEhBMEFH TS TEREREE
EHENERRBE -ATELBRYE
EEZARBNEERQFEKIE
B KRR 2R

REEHRFER EEBRNZES
VEEREMEETEBAER (i)
ATMhER EFEMERELBRAYE
ERERE ; R (i)RB L EMEST

B

PR 1E 5 B PR A B9 ik (B A 0 SR 3
EEMEH RETWENQIFE
K -MENBERREERSEE
Bl -

REVMEZEEESHNT:

2017 2016
—B—tF | ZE—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FET
Land located in the PRC: RAPEZ i
Medium-term lease FREFFE A 6,766 7,199
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued 20. BEYMR-&
Details of the Group’s investment property () R-S—tEFER-Z—XRE=A
and information about the fair value E+—H FEERBTVERL
hierarchy as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are FEHEREHERMDT:
as follows:
Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 March 2017
RIB—tF
ZA=+—-HZ
1R 24k 3R [FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FTET FTHET FTET FiET
Investment property unit LRFEZ
located in the PRC REMEEN - 6,766 - 6,766
Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 March 2016
RZE-RE
=A=t+-RHz
14} 28 38 AVE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TER TET TEx
Investment property unit fRAREZ
located in the PRC REMEEN - 7,199 - 7,199
There were no transfers into or out of Level 2 or Level BE-_Z—tER-_ZF—RE=A
3 during the year 31 March 2017 and 2016. ST —BLEEE 2HRH3RILEE
EEEONEY
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between TEBZHEABRINEHER 2
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the date of EHRBEREEHIR 2 BERKEHN
the events or change in circumstances that caused the ANV EEREERE-
transfer.
Investment property leased out under (d BREESHEHAZREYME

(d)

operating leases

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating lease to earn rentals are measured using
the fair value model and classified accounted for

investment property.

AEEMAERBELHESAUR
HASWANYEEDIRADF
ERAFE UDEEREDEA
iR o

2016/2017 F3 HEREERBRERLE

167



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued

(d)

(e)

Investment property leased out under
operating leases — continued

The Group leases out its investment property which are
shop units of a 9-storey composite building to various
tenants. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 year to 5 years, at the end of which period all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals. The rental income for investment
property less directly outgoings of approximately
HK$170,000 (2016: approximately HK$265,000).

The property held had committed tenants for 4 years
(2016: 2.6 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the Group contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease receivables:

20. REME-—E
(d) REEESREHBEZRENE

— &

AEERNZEAFHEEEEY
¥ (B BRABHREAEZEHE
) AR T AP —FER
F R ENERMERR - EY
TEEIAREE - REREWEZ
HEWAREERBE XA %5170,000
BT (ZZ—XF:4265,000%
JT) °

B ZMEERRLIF (ZF—R
F:26%)EeAEEAEZEAF R
RBEEHPR  ARBECEBEFTY
RAREWE z&EBEWT :

2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E-—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Within one year —FR 173 273
In the second to the fifth years F_ZhF (BREEME)
inclusive 519 459
692 732
Particulars of investment property REAMRZES

The particulars of the investment property at 31 March
2017 and 2016 are as follows:

R-ZB-—LtER-F-~F=A
=t—RB REWEZFHBNOT:

Attributable interest

Location Type Tenure of the Group
i BE my HEl FREMLER
Shop No. 1 on Level 1, Building and land Medium-term lease 99.80%

Heng Ye Building, Wusi Road, BFR i REFRA
Shaowu City, Fujian Province,

the PRC.

HREEEZEART

h R IEEKRE

—E—REH-
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21. GOODWILL 21. &8
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET F&ET
Cost 3% 3
As at 1 April RMEMA—H 785,511 787,382
Additional amounts recognised from RAFEELEHEBSH
business combination occurring Frig sl 2 BN FRIR (BMFEE25)
during the year (Note 25) 123,550 -
Release of goodwill due to disposal of HE—ERBEARMEEE
a subsidiary (Note 26) (Fff5E26) - (1,852)
Exchange realignment B AR (21) (19)
As at 31 March R=B=+—H 909,040 785,511
Accumulated impairment losses RiBEGE
As at 1 April and 31 March RUA—BR=A=+—H 785,169 785,169
Carrying amounts IR (B
As at 31 March R=A=+-—8H 123,871 342
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

21. GOODWILL - continued 21.

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwiill
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be

impaired.

For purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following CGUs. The carrying amounts of
goodwill (net of accumulated impairment loss) as at 31
March 2017 and 2016 are allocated as follows:

[} Sk |
EFHEZREEL B MR EAR
AEESFETABEBRENA R
BPSRERHE RS ERERERE
3 4T RN (BRI A o

BRBEARNS AECSIEETIRSE
EEXBN - R-IZ-—tFERZZE-ARFZ=
AB=t—H BZzREE (BRI
EER)ZEMOT :

2017 2016
—B—tF | ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FiET
Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) HHEE(RMNBRAA
Company Limited (TRMELF])
("Quanzhou Huihao")
— retail of pharmaceutical and -~ ZEEQRMEBEER
related products 321 342
Mingxi County Trading Company Limited HEHREHEZERAT
(“Mingxi"”) (IeZE )
— provision of hemodialysis treatment - REMRBENEGER
and consultancy services & 7 AR 7% 123,550 =
123,871 342
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 &Z2=Z—tH=A=+—HILFE

21. GOODWILL - continued

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill

- continued

Quanzhou Huihao

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-years period and with discount rates of
12.53% (2016: 13.36%) per annum. Cash flow projections
during the budgeted period are based on the same
expected gross margins throughout the budget period. The
management considers that it is prudent and appropriate
to adopt 0% (2016: 8%) annual growth rate of cash flow
projections for each flows beyond the budgeted period
as the result of the retail of pharmaceutical and related
products in Quanzhou is declining. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and

its expectations for the market development.

21. e 1A
AEREZRSELEARENR
-

R E

hReEESEV2ATKESEIREE
REETEEE mMERAEERESER
M EZRELFHUKRBERSHZ
BeRETEA URMBEEREF12.53%
(ZE—RE:13.36%):TE-BEHR
ZEEeREFEANDEREEAEEHRME
AzERENEHE - EEERA AR
ENEDREBERTETR  KMNEE
HEREREZFEREI% (ZZ2—K
F 8% )EENBEERBEE EEEM
5 sTEATRESEMEIEZEEMET
REERZEMEERZE TEERLERS
ErBEUzREAEBRRAETKRESHE
HE - EEEREBIRERAHTSER
RzEREEREERNME-
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21.

22.

GOODWILL - continued
Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwiill

- continued

Mingxi

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-years period and with discount rates
of 15% per annum. Cash flow projections during the
budgeted period are based on the same expected gross
margins throughout the budget period. The management
considers that it is prudent and appropriate to adopt zero
annual growth rate of cash flow projections for each flows
beyond the budgeted period. Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and

its expectations for the market development.

INVENTORIES

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

21.

22.

[} Sk |
ERAHEZREEL B MR ER
— iR

iR
WREEEENM 2 TRESEIRE-ER
BESEEE MEAEBEERBEEEM
REZRETFHRMBREMSH 2R
EREFR URBEREEF15%E -
FEHAZRERSERADEREMERE
EHRERZAAENRAE - EEER
R RARERREESREBEZFRRET
EEDEEEREE -EEEME SE
AREEEARE 2 EEZRRAELE
ZEMEEESE FTEEIURSELE
UZRHAEBRRARTRESHEEAE -E
EERBBEREREHMERRE 2R
AEEREEFNR-

7R
REERBRRERZ FEBIE:

2017 2016

—Z—+tF —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi#T FE T

Finished goods 2K m 86,134 107,578

1 72 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. EARREMBERRARKRS
DEPOSITS
2017 2016
—ZE=—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Trade receivables g 5 EWHIE 110,026 194,258
Bills receivable L 14,022 5,854
Prepayments and deposit paid EARERDTERS 24,950 50,213
Prepaid lease payments (Note 19) FEAHEERE (MEE19) 366 365
Other receivables HihEW 8 53,648 34,454
203,012 285,144
Less: Impairment loss recognised in W HE A IR R
respect of other receivables REEE (915) (973)
202,097 284,171
As at 31 March 2017, bills receivable of approximately R-ZZE—tHF=A=+—H EKE
HK$14,022,000 (2016: HK$5,854,000) will be matured % #14,022,0008 T (=8 — KR F:
within six months after the end of the reporting period. All 5,854,00058 7T ) #§ B ]} & H R & /<@ A
the bills receivable are denominated in RMB. AEIH - R EEWREE I UARMEFTE -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23.
DEPOSITS - continued

Included in the Groups other receivables were the
value added tax (“VAT"”) recoverable of approximately
HK$4,849,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$7,997,000).

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, pharmaceutical retail
chain business and hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
service business are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally
payable from 30 to 90 days of issuance. The ageing analysis

of trade receivables based on the invoices date is as follows:

EOREMEBERRARES
—#&

R-ZF—tF=A=+—-R0 st AXE
B H fth FE R IE 2 AT W B IS E R (45
EF ) #4,849,0008 T (ZFE— K&
7,997,000/ 7T) °

BERitBROEXRYE ERTEBHEER
LR MBEMERERBARBERER
NERLTREERTREA - FRE-—RA
R EAHE30ZE90B AR (T REER
HNEZRBRENRRITOT :

2017 2016
—B—tF | ZFE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Within 90 days 90H KLy 90,437 151,264
91 — 180 days 91&180H 11,900 35,957
181 — 365 days 1812365H 7,689 7,037
Over 365 days HiB365H 5,663 5,397
115,689 199,655

Less: Impairment loss recognised in W RE S RWFIERERN
respect of trade receivables BEEE (5,663) (5,397)
110,026 194,258
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which
are past due at the end of the reporting period but against
which the Group has not recognised an allowance for
doubtful receivables because there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a
legal right to offset against any amounts owed by the Group
to the counterparty. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
the directors assessed that the amounts are not expected to

be recovered.

23. RARAMBERRERZESR

— iR

FXFREBEZEZRUHRERERKRS
IR CIE R - A 5 3 SR T 5 P LR AR
BEzeB FEAABRENFEESR
WEBASHANWERT FTUIE - KE
B ER LG EERTAENERARIA
fEEMRER - NEEERERN A AR
B4 XX 5 8 F W EMREEEE - @5
HENRYRESREMBRENTS
ESNTEAEFZESETERE -

Ageing of impaired trade receivables ERERSERRAZIER
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT THET
Over 365 days HBiB365H 5,663 5,397
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

23. HRARREMERRARES

DEPOSITS - continued — iR
Ageing of past due but not impaired BEMEXRREEZRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Overdue by: 2EE:
1 - 90 days 1£90H 11,900 35,957
91 - 180 days 91£180H 7,689 7,037
Over 180 days HiB180H - -
19,589 42,994

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
balances with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$19,589,000 (2016: HK$42,994,000) which was past due
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group not

provided for impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS - continued
Movement in the provision for impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade receivables is

summarised as follows:

23. RARAMBERRERZESR

— iR
Tk 52 50 R Uy ok O 5 o M S 1R I O
SEEEmT

2017 2016

—2—+t#F —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FERT TExT

As at 1 April ROEUA—HA 5,397 5,190
Impairment losses recognised ERAZBEEE 1,508 1,176
Impairment losses reversed BB B (890) (683)
Exchange realignment FE R (352) (286)
As at 31 March R=A=+-—8H 5,663 5,397

Included in allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$5,663,000 (2016: HK$5,397,000). For overdue debts,
based on the past default experience, payment history of
customers and subsequent settlement, the Group assessed
the corporate customers for potential impairment losses.
Full provision has been made for individual trade receivables
aged over one year with no subsequent settlement as
historical evidence shows that such amounts are not

recoverable.

REEBRERTAERRHEZE S BB
18 2 #4582 55,663,000/ 7T (ZF — X
15,397,000 ¢) - BB BEEMS
FEERBBEIRENRBEZLER TP
RIREHEREBREETIMEERTFZE
ERERE ANAFCARRER—F2
HeETHREE @R E 3 BBHKEBEL
2HEBE REARBBEZREER It
LemE|ElE-

2016/2017 F3 HEEREERBRHERLE

177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEHmERME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. RERAMMBRREARES
DEPOSITS - continued — iR
Movement in the provision for impairment loss W H i BB U RR IR T A2 2 SR B R (E S
of the Group recognised in respect of other RBEmBDEEEMT -

receivables is summarised as follows:

2017 2016

—ZE—tF —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHExT

As at 1 April HMA—H 973 1,026
Exchange realignment B AR (58) (53)
As at 31 March R=BA=+-—8H 915 973
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o — &
24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 24. B AT ZHE
(a) Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of (@) A=Z—tF=A=+—HB &4
which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2017 AZEENMBAR (BMABRATA)
are as follows: HBENT
Particulars of
Place and date of issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary Percentage of equity, effective
Name of registration Class of share capital interest and voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held Iregistered capital by the Company Principal activities
MR/ ER BTRMREERS/
HELRER REEWHRAY  FRERER HEREXZHE FREARACRE EREGRARMZLA TERE
Direct Indirect
Ef &
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZB-tE| ZF-AF| IB-tE| Z3-RF
% % % %
Luxuriant Expand Global Investments British Virgin Island/ Ordinary US$100/US§50,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
Limited 10 April 2012
KNERREERAT ABRLEE/ LBR  100%7/50000%7 REBR
“E-ZERATA
Timely Hero Enterprises Limited British Virgin Island/ Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
1 December 2006
REEXERLA ABRLEE/ EER 1%70,/50,000% 7 REZR
“ZZXE+2F-B
Nurture Fit Limited British Virgin Island/ Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
16 July 2009
RERRAF ABRLEE/ EER 1%70,/50,000% 7 REZR
“ZZAELATAR
Huihao (HK) Group Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
("Huihao Hong Kong") 1 March 2004
i (B BESEERAR B/ EER 1,000,000/8 7 REER
((2#&%]) “2ENE=F-H
Wider Blissful Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100 - - - Investment holding
3 March 2017
BEERLA BE/ EBR 1,000,000 7 RERR
“2-tFZ5=H
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical The PRC/ Registered RMB55,856,350 - - 99.80 99.80 Pharmaceutical retail
China Company Limited 30 November 2001 chain business
("Huihao Sihai")* in the PRC
BREFMBBEEHERAT HE/ EMER AR #55,856,3507C RIEERTE
((B#msl) ZEE-F4+-AZtH BHERK
Fuzhou Province Huihao City Huihao The PRC/ Registered RMB91,500,000 - - 78.14 75 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 9 July 2008 distribution business
(“Fuzhou Huihao")* in the PRC
RREBNTEHEXERAR wE/ sMaER  AR%91,500,0007% REBERHER
(IEN=s]) “2ENELANA PEEH
Putian Huihao Medicine The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 78.14 75  Pharmaceutical wholesale
Company Limited 11 July 2008 and distribution business
("Putian Huihao")* in the PRC
FREREABEERAT wE/ AfER  AK#10,000,000% RPBERHER
((BREH1)* “EE\FLAT-H PEEH
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24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of

which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2017

are as follows: — continued

Place and date of

Particulars of
issued and fully

24. B AT ZHETS
(a)

R-ZB—+tHF=A=Z+—H &2

AEEMBAR (FRRRLIT)

HEMT

incorporation/ paid ordinary Percentage of equity, effective
Name of registration Class of share capital interest and voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held Iregistered capital by the Company Principal activities
MR/ ER BTRMREERS/
HELRER REEWHRAM sk &R HEREXCHE FREARACRE EREGRARMZLA TERE
Direct Indirect
Ef R
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-LE| ZR-RF| ZB-tE| 225K
% % % %

Fujian Huiming Medicine The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - - 78.14 75 Pharmaceutical wholesale
Company Limited 10 July 2008 and distribution business
(“Fujian Huiming")* in the PRC

BREZHBERRAA HE/ AMER AR#20,000,0007 REEERHER
((EE=H)): “BENELATH PEEH

Huihao Medicine (Quazhou) The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 78.14 75 Pharmaceutical wholesale
Company Limited 17 May 2007 and distribution business
("Quanzhou Huihao")* in the PRC

BB (M) ERAF hE/ #fEx  AK#10,000,000% RPEERHBER
(TRNEH]) “EERLFRATLA DEER

Huihao Pharmaceutical (Nanping) The PRC/ Registered RMB12,500,000 - - - 60  Pharmaceutical wholesale
Company Limited 18 April 1991 and distribution business
(“Nanping Huihao")* in the PRC

EAEE (BV)ERAR wE/ ZMER AR#12,500,0007 REEZERHER
(TaTEs)): -An-EMA+AR PEEH

Fujian Rui Mai Trading Company The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - - 78.14 - Investment holding
Limited (“Fujian Rui Mai" ) 2 September 2016

RRHEESERAR wE/ dfER  AR¥20,000,0007% REBR
((ERsEl)" “2-~ENAZH

Mingxi County Trading Company The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - = 78.14 = Hemodialysis treatment
Limited (“Mingxi")* 23 December 2016 and consultancy service

business in the PRC

PEREEEAERAF ([HE])* HE/ AfER AR #20,000,0007 R EmRER

“E-5E RERZARBER
T=A=t=H

Lianan Kidney Fujian Medical The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - - 78.14 - Hemodialysis treatment
Management Company Limited* 15 June 2012 and consultancy service

business in the PRC

B2EN (BR)BRERARLR HE/ AfER AR #20,000,0007 RebEnRER

“E--§RATEA RERBARBEY

Putian Lianan Kidney Medical The PRC/ Registered RMB1,000,000 - - 78.14 - Hemodialysis treatment
Management Company Limited* 8 November 2016 and consultancy service

business in the PRC

ERBRBRBREEARAR' HE/ &R AR%1,000,000% R EMRER

“2-R~Et-ANB REREARBER

Zhuhai Sheng Chuang Medical The PRC/ Registered RMB1,000,000 - - 78.14 - Hemodialysis treatment
Investment Management Limited* 18 March 2016 and consultancy service

business in the PRC

KEAEBEREERARAT! HE/ AMER AR #1,000,0007 RPEnRER

ZE-REZATNR RERBARBEY
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24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 24. BB T Z 1S
(a) Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of (@) A=Z—+tF=A=+—H8 &4
which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2017 AZEENMBAR (BMABBRATA)

are as follows: — continued HBENT &

Particulars of

Place and date of issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary Percentage of equity, effective
Name of registration Class of share capital interest and voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held Iregistered capital by the Company Principal activities
MR/ ER BTRMREERS/
HELREHR REEWNHRAY  FRERER HRESZHE FREARACRE EREGRARMZLA TERE
Direct Indirect
Ef R
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-LE| ZR-RF| I3t 220K
% % % %
Yangchun City Yanghe Kidney The PRC/ Registered RMB680,000 - - 78.14 - Hemodialysis treatment
Hemodialysis Limited® 27 September 2016 and consultancy service
business in the PRC
BETBAENOEENERAR HE/ AMER ARH680,0007 W E MR R
ZE-RF REREARBEE
hA=t+tA
Yangxi Yanghe Kidney Hemodialysis The PRC/ Registered RMBNil - - 78.14 - Hemodialysis treatment
Limited* 30 September 2016 and consultancy service
business in the PRC
BEENENORERFERAR HE/ AMER ARBETR RbEnRER
“E-RF REREARBES
AB=1A
Mao Ming City Dianbai Yanghe The PRC/ Registered RMB300,000 - - 78.14 - Hemodialysis treatment
Kidney Hemodialysis Limited* 15 November 2016 and consultancy service
business in the PRC
KEMEARABHNR HE/ AfER AR%300,0007 R EDRER
ENERAT “E2-RF REREARBER
t-At+aA
Huidong Yanghe Kidney The PRC/ Registered RMB3,000,000 - - 78.14 - Hemodialysis treatment
Hemodialysis Limited® 29 November 2016 and consultancy service
business in the PRC
ERENBFOABERAA HE/ HREA AB#3,000,0007 R EMRE
ZB-RF RERBARBEY
t-A=tnA
L The English names of the Company's subsidiaries in

the PRC are transliteration of their respective Chinese
names which have not been registered.
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24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 24. BB R FZHFE &
- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) BFEXRIRRERZIEREMN
that have material non-controlling interests BATZHE
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TRETAEEREERFERE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- BRI EMBLARZES:

controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership

Place of incorporation interests and voting rights
and principal held by non-controlling Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
BERBIBHR FRRERKTCHER
HELT AR TERHME ERRARELH PETHERERZ AT AHFRRER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt | ZE-RE | ZB-tE| ZEB-RE| IB-tF | ZE2-5F
% % HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TR
Fuzhou Huihao The PRC 21.86 25 87 244 42,778 60,940
BNEH HE
Summarised financial information in respect of the ERAEEBEEERFERERZ
Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling MEAR M BEERMEHI W
interests is set out below. The summarised financial T UATHBERNMEAREER
information below represents amounts before AR EHHEA 2SR

intragroup eliminations.
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24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 24. BB AT ZHFE &
- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) MBEXRIEZERERZIEZEN
that have material non-controlling interests BARZHE &
- continued
Fuzhou Huihao RN E R
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Current assets RENEE 218,342 471,582
Non-current assets IRBEE 139,903 6,212
Current liabilities mEAE (162,554) (234,032)
Non-current liabilities EFRBERE - =
Equity attributable to owners of RABEE AEGLER
the Company 152,913 182,822
Non-controlling interests R ER 42,778 60,940
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24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 24.
- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests

BT ZHR—&

(b) WAEXERRBEZEZAM
BAFEZHEME— &

- continued
Fuzhou Huihao - continued TEMEY &
2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue U &= 747,100 1,120,351
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (ER),CER (435) 2,242
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FEfh (E518) &l :
Owners of the Company ARAREB A (522) 1,998
Non-controlling interests R AER 87 244
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (E7R),ER (435) 2,242
Total comprehensive loss EBiE2EEIREE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViNUNEETE 2 =N (11,586) (3,792)
Non-controlling interests IR ER (4,496) (1,686)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZHEEELLE (16,082) (5,478)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

24. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 24. BB AT ZHE —#&
- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) MBEXRIEZRESRZFEZEN
that have material non-controlling interests BATGZHB—E
- continued
Fuzhou Huihao - continued EMER &
2017 2016
—E2—-+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$000
THET FET
Dividends paid to non-controlling ENFEERERRKRE
interests - =
Net cash inflow from operating REXBEEZHESRANFE
activities 5,106 227,643
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REEXEBEEZ
investing activities Be (RE) /RAFE (133,952) 2,440
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RMEXBEEZ
financing activities BE&RAN/ (R FE 36,717 (90,835)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (RE) /ARAFE (92,129) 139,248
Significant restrictions EXREH
Cash and short-term deposits of RMB held in the PRC are REBEUARBEENE S REHEFER
subject to local exchange control regulations. These local O RB ST E M E SR o 2 E S Hh[E
exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on 55 &G 7 R B 2 S AN E AN IR H R 4
exporting capital from the PRC, other than through normal HEEB—RIREEERRI
dividends.
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25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 25. WM B 2 7

On 24 January 2017, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Fujian Rui Mai, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”)
with the vendor and agreed to acquire the entire equity
interest in Mingxi and its subsidiaries (“Mingxi Group”),
with a consideration of RMB125,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$140,954,000). The principal activity of
the Mingxi Group is provision of hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service through jointly-operated and self-
operated hemodialysis treatment centers and trading of
hemodialysis treatment consumables and equipment in the
PRC. Pursuant to the Agreement, the vendor guaranteed a
net profit after taxation of not less than RMB10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,298,000) for the year
ending 31 March 2018. The acquisition was completed on
14 March 2017.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 25. YRS IS 2 B
- continued —#&
The carrying amounts and fair value of assets REEAMRMEBEERRREZAR
acquired and liabilities recognised at the date ZIEEERLAFE:
acquisition
Mingxi
Group
B iR Sk M
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (Note 18) M- -MEKRHZE (KFF18) 12,487
Inventories 7E 382
Trade receivables and other receivables B RWFER E M EWRIE 3,821
Prepayments and deposits FEARERERSE 1,048
Tax recoverable AJ [ Y 5 18 312
Cash and cash equivalents BReERREEEEB 4,176
Trade and other payables g5 R HMEMNTIE (4,822)

Net assets EEFE 17,404
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 Z2=—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 25. KWASME o E — &
- continued
Goodwill arising on acquisition BEEzHE
Mingxi
Group
Bk Sk E
HK$'000
FTET
Cash consideration BERE 140,954
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired AR EE
FHRZNTE (17,404)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 21) WEEEE 2 BmE (MiaE21) 123,550
Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Mingxi Group because A S OF B A B 15 12 I R Ve (B - R WiE AR
the cost of the combination included a control premium. BEEEEEFEWIN BBEREGHAX
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination T REBFHEPEIEENERBREMN
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits BWARR - RARMESERREZBET
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market EFENANEERNESE ZEFETE
development and the assembled workforce of Mingxi Group. HEESHRER BAZSMNRALT/HE
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill ARABFEECRIAELE.

because they do not meet the recognition criteria for

identifiable intangible assets.
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25. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 25. IriEM B A T — &
- continued
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries BEHEBARZHERHBE:
Mingxi
Group
BiRSkE
HK$'000
FET
Consideration paid or payable in cash UREXAREN 2 RE 140,954
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired BIWERESRRSESEER &% (4,176)
Net cash outflow ReRt F8E 136,778
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group KBHFEEERRIRE
Revenue of HK$69,000 and loss of HK$224,000 contributed A% & B & Rk < 69,000/ T R & 18
by Mingxi Group were recognised in the Group's loss for the 224,000 LI RAEEBLE—Z—+tF
year ended 31 March 2017. ZA=t+—HBLEEZEBEPER.
Had these business combination be effective at 1 April 2016, MZEEBEHEN_T—<"FNA—AH
the revenue of the Group would have been approximately R AREE Z W E# £989,662,000
HK$989,662,000, and the loss for the year would have B REEEFEEXNA26,160,0008
been approximately HK$26,160,000. The directors of the T AEBESRAZSHTRBPSHE
Group consider these numbers to represent an approximate BreRBZFESNTERARREE
measure of the performance of the combined group on ZEBRIRBSEEZL -

an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for

comparison in future period.

2016/2017 53 EESEEZEBRERALF 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

26. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(a) Nanping Huihao
On 21 February 2017, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Fuzhou Huihao, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement and agreed to sell
the entire 60% equity interests in Nanping Huihao,
with a consideration of RMB8,378,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$9,689,000). The disposal was

26. HEE—FHME L F

(a)

RZZE—+tE=-A=+—H &2
AZEEFTENB AT EMNELY
AN HEEREREEHERYE
EHEH0NRE REAARYE
8,378,000t (#H 5 1 49,689,000
Bx) HEFTHENR-ZE—+t&E=

completed on 21 February 2017. A=Zt+—HREMK-
Summary of the effects of the disposal of Nanping HEBYEFZHERZNT
Huihao are as follows:
2017
—E—+t#F
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents EWHRERREEEEENKRE 9,689
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which SERNENEERARS
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 18) Y- -BERRZE (HE18) 1,745
Inventories 7E 10,647
Trade receivables, prepayments and B S EWFIE AN RIER
other receivables H fih & IR FR 18 41,997
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEMEEH 387
Trade and other payables E5 R EMEFIE (32,816)
Tax payable FE A3 #5118 (122)
Net assets disposed HEEEFE 21,838
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—FHHBEBATZEIR:
Consideration received 2R E 9,689
Less: Net assets disposed of W HEEEFRE (21,838)
Release of translation reserve RRRE RS 1,349
Non-controlling interests FERER 10,474
Loss on disposal HERBE (326)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HERFREFEEZRERABRE:
Nanping Huihao:
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents EWHRE KRB EEEEENKE 9,689
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of B :BHEZBE & REBESEEEE &6k (387)
9,302
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26. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY - continued

(a)

(b)

Nanping Huihao - continued

The loss on disposal is included in the loss for the
year in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. For the period
from 1 April 2016 to the date of disposal, Nanping
Huihao was engaged in wholesale and distribution
of pharmaceutical and related products in the PRC.
No revenue was generated and loss of approximately
HK$154,000 incurred by Nanping Huihao was
recognised in the Group's loss for the year ended 31
March 2017.

Xiamen Huihao

On 22 October 2015, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Xiamen Huihao, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement and agreed to
sell the entire 60% equity interests in Hui Hao Yi Yao
(Xiamen) Company Limited (“Xiamen Huihao”) held by
Fuzhou Huihao, with a consideration of RMB3,266,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,054,000). The
disposal was completed on 22 October 2015.

26. HE—FHMELE —&

(a)

(b)

BEE &
HEBFBEITALFEREERER
Hth2EHBBRZEBRRN-B=-F
—R"ENAE-AEZEHEAMIES
B EEEFRPERSERRAE
BERMBERSHE BIBMETELF
EEzWzmKEEKN154,000% T
DRAEEBE=-Z—tHF=A
S+t-HLEFEZBERER-

ERELF
RZZB-AF+A=+=H &2
RAzEEETENBE AR EMELT
AY—HEBEHRREREELHEREM
BEREEEHEE (BEM)ERA
A ([EFEE]) 2IB60%MKE R
BAHARM3,266,000T (HERY
4,054,000/ T) - HESHEHR _-F
—hFE+AZtTZHEMK-
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26. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY - continued 26. HE—RIME LT —#&

(b) Xiamen Huihao - continued (b) BPIEI—4&
Summary of the effects of the disposal of Xiamen HEBMEFZ

Huihao are as follows:

BMZaT :

2016
—m g
HK$'000
FERT
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BEWRERREEEEE 4,054
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KERFIEMNEERABRIN:
control was lost:
Goodwill G 1,852
Property, plant and equipment ME- - BRERZE 222
Inventories FE 1,139
Trade receivables, prepayments and BEZRWHIE BEIRER
other receivables H i fE W X8 4,996
Cash and cash equivalents HENBEEEEEE 1,947
Trade and other payables B REMENSTRIE (3,525)
Tax payable FE A3 % 18 (53)
Net assets disposed HEEEEE 6,578
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RMBBARZEIR:
Consideration received 2 WRE 4,054
Less: Net assets disposed of wWoOHEEEZFE (6,578)
Less: Release of translation reserve R E RS (139)
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,891
Loss on disposal HEBE (772)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

26. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY - continued

26. HE—FHMELE —&

(b) Xiamen Huihao - continued (b) EPFIELF -8

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Xiamen Huihao: HEEMEFEEZRERAZF
- I

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents EWRERBEEEHEBEERE 4,054
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of & : BHEZRERIBESE(EERH & (1,947)
2,107

The loss on disposal is included in the loss for the
year in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. For the period
from 1 April 2015 to the date of disposal, Xiamen
Huihao was engaged in wholesale and distribution
of pharmaceutical and related products in the PRC.
Revenue of approximately HK$5,969,000 and loss of
approximately HK$761,000 contributed by Xiamen
Huihao was recognised in the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

HEBFBEFTALRFEREEBRER
Hth2EWERZEBR - B=F
—HEFNA—HEZEHERHILE
B BEFMEFRPEREERRAE
BERAZER D H B EF SR
2 W 2% #95,969,0008 TR E B L
761,000 T TR AEBBE=-F
—REZB=+-HLEFEZEE
R
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27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 27. B A RMB AT ZRIEA
SUBSIDIARIES
2017 2016
—Z—tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Name of fellow subsidiaries ARBELTRZEE
Edward Hospital Company Limited EEEREEERARLA - 3,571
Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Company Limited — BB hBEERER A T - 4,610
- 8,181

The maximum amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

outstanding during the years ended 31 March 2017 and

BE T tFERFE—RFEF=A=+—
B IEFEE - FEURE Z B A & i Ak U ER

2016 are as follows: MESSENT:
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET

Name of fellow subsidiaries AxMEARZEE

Edward Hospital Company Limited EEREEERARLA 3,571 3,763
Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Company Limited — BB hEZRAER D T 4,610 4,858

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

interest-free and recoverable on demand.

are unsecured,

AREREE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

28. e RBeFERAREHA

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS BITER
2017 2016
—F—tF | —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT Tt
Cash and cash equivalents HEeENREEEEB 93,721 203,500

At as 31 March 2017, the cash at banks and in hand of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$80,056,000 (2016: approximately HK$179,488,000).
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on the
prevailing market rate which at 0.35% per annum during
the reporting period (2016: 0.30%). The cash and cash
equivalents are deposits with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
but conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorization to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Pledged bank deposits:

As at 31 March 2017, a bank deposit denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$10,156,000 (2016:
approximately HK$6,096,000) were pledged as collateral for
bank borrowings and the effective interest rate on pledged
bank deposits is 3% (2016: 3.5%).

R-ZZE—tF=A=+—H Fx5&H
UARBINEZRTREERFERSE
#%80,056,000B T (ZF—<F 4
179,488,000/ 7T) - R EH AN R1TH
SRBITHBERZR0.35% LT B FI = 5
BAE (ZE—RF:030%) HERHE
SEEBEADEFRABYRENTHE
EEBRFZRITC

ARBATEHABRBHEMER HEAR
WARBABINEDABTHEAMEINE
EFRPIRGE - EERVEEERE
AEEREEBERBETIIEXELD
RITEARELZBBHMER -

SEREMK:

RZZE—tE=A=1+—H ' UARK
BEZRITEREL0,156,0008 T (=F
— 735 1 496,096,000 7T ) IR RITEE
BIREARTRRCERBRTERZE
BRAERD3I% (ZF—RF:135%) °
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. ES RHEMEFRIE
2017 2016
—Z—tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 100,388 162,420
Bills payable BN EE 21,557 16,308
Accruals and other payables B ERRHEMESRIE 39,699 36,438
Receipt in advance FE UK IE 16,702 17,912
178,346 233,078

Included in accruals and other payables were the
consideration payable for acquisition of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$11,276,000 (2016: Nil) and deposits
from customers of approximately HK$7,487,000 (2016:
approximately HK$13,419,000).

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

EAERARAMENSREBBEED K
B ELAEMAKEN1,276,0008
T(ZE-—RFE B)RRBEFFZE
£ 47,487,000 T (ZFE—ARF 4
13,419,000 7T) °

ESREMRENREDFTOT

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#T T T

Within 90 days 90H LA 60,068 106,571
91 - 180 days 91ZE180H 14,087 30,174
181 — 365 days 181%F365H 4,954 10,094
Over 365 days #BiB365H 21,279 15,581
100,388 162,420
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30.

31.

32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

- continued

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

The average credit period on purchases of certain goods in

range from 30 to 90 days.

The bills payable are matured within six months from the

ended of the reporting period. And the bills payable were

secured by certain pledged bank deposits. All the bills

payable are denominated in RMB.

AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE

HOLDING COMPANY

Amount due to the ultimate holding company is unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

29. RS R H M FE M B IR— 4

BEETERZFHEERNF3I0E0
AzfEe

BNREAHRERRETSERREH -
BARBUETEERRBRTERERK
H-FBERNRBIIUARBERE-

31. Eff K AFRRE

BEYRKERIBAREARERE RERK
ABREREE-

AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES 32. BRI RME AT ZHRIEA
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- ENRRHBARZREARIRF R
free and repayable on demand. REREREE-
BANK BORROWINGS 33. SRITMEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T8 T
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE-—HBIKH 59,342 32,396
2017 2016
—Z—tfF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
Carrying amount repayables: FEEZERmE5:
On demand or within one year shown BRERF—FR
under current liabilities STARBERE 59,342 32,396

2016/2017 F3 HEEREERBRHERLE

197



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2= —+F=A=1t—HILFE

32. BANK BORROWINGS - continued

Notes:

(@ As at 31 March 2017, no secured bank borrowing was
secured by corporate guarantee by inter-group company
(2016: the secured bank borrowings of approximately
HK$17,998,000 were secured by corporate guarantee by
inter-group company, carries variable interest rates range from
4.30% to 5.66% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group had
additional secured bank borrowings of approximately
HK$96,872,000 carry fixed interest rates range from 5.22%
to 6.96% per annum and were secured by prepaid lease
payments.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the outstanding
balance of 2016 of HK$32,396,000 was fully repaid.

(b)  Details of pledged assets were pledged to bank to secure the
Group's banking facilities, please refer to the Note 43.

() The carrying amount of the Group's bank borrowings are all
originally denominated in RMB.

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES
The convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) issued on 1
June 2015, the maturity date of Convertible Notes was on

31 May 2017. The conversion share price was HK$0.65.

The Convertible Notes contains two components, liability
and equity elements. The equity element is presented in

equity heading “Convertible note reserve”.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
notes. The residual amount, representing the value of the
equity conversion component, was included in shareholders’

equity in convertible note reserve.
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£6.96EsH 2 WA HERBEIR
o
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ZB - RFEREIEARR32,396,0008
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES - continued 33. AWM RE &
The Convertible Notes recognised in the consolidated REREVMBRRRER ZATRREET
statement of financial position was calculated as follows: EWT:
HK$'000
THET
Fair value of Convertible Notes issued on 1 June 2015 R=ZZE—HF A —HETZ
HEREBEZQFE 84,292
Equity component BRI (9,866)
Liability component on initial recognition and NSEIAFZEEH I RA
amortised cost as at 1 June 2015 —E-RFARA—BZEERE 74,426
Amortised cost at 1 April 2015 R-ZE—HRFWNA—HZEERLK -
Issue of Convertible Notes BITORAREE 74,426
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BITABRREBEEZRSHAE
Convertible Notes (1,825)
Interest expense FMEFX 8,277
Interest payable BRI 2 (3,611)
As at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZEBE—RE=ZA=+—HK
—E-AFMA—H 77,267
Interest expense FMERRX 10,314
Interest payable EARE (4,212)
As at 31 March 2017 R-ZZE—tF=A=+—H 83,369
As at 31 March 2017, the outstanding principal amount RZZ—tHF=ZA=+—R0 AT2REE
of Convertible Notes was HK$83,369,000 (2016: Z i REE R £ EE583,369,0008 T (=
HK$84,292,000). T — X4 84,292,000 7T ) o
Interest expense on the Convertible Notes is calculated ARBEEEZAEFEXZIERERTFEE
using the effective interest method by applying the effective REERI2ERMNEIZNEFTE (=
interest rate of 13.11% to the liability component (2016: E-RFII311E) -
13.11%).
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34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised
and movements thereon during the years ended 31 March
2017 and 2016.

34 BEERMBAAR

UTABZE-ZE—+tHFR-ZE—-—XRE=
B=+t-—-BHBLEEERRAZETEERELEHIE
HEHRRERE:

Deferred tax liabilities: EEBIEEG:
Convertible
Notes
CE: Y28
HK$'000
TFHET
As at 1 April 2015 RZE—HRFEMA—H -
Addition due to Convertible Notes FSICIEEE S 1,929
Credited to profit or loss (Note 15) s AEE (FfaE15) (1,366)
As at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZEBE—RE=ZA=+—HK
—E-XEWm™AB—H 563
Credited to profit or loss (Note 15) s AB &= (FFEE15) (483)
As at 31 March 2017 R=Z—tF=A=+—H 80

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
unutilised tax losses available to set off against future
assessable profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unutilised tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams of the subsidiaries
which incurred the tax losses. These tax losses in Hong Kong
may be carried forward indefinitely and the tax losses in PRC

may be expired within five years.
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. l& &
Nominal
value of
Number of ordinary
shares shares
HiERZ
Bz & B IR {E
HK$'000
F#E T
Authorised: ERE:
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016, R-ZE—-HRFMA—H"
1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 —E-XFE=ZB=+—8"
ordinary share of HK$0.01 —E-RFMA-HRK
—ZEZ—+tH=ZA=+—H
BREEINEBLTZEEBR 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREAE:
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016, R-ZE—HFWAB—H-
1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 —E-RE=ZA=+—8"
ordinary share of HK$0.01 —E-RFMA-HRK
—E—tF=ZA=+—H
BREECNEBTZEBR 648,405,300 6,484
36. RESERVES 36. fi& i
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEBEZE-E—tER-ZE—XREFE=
therein for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 are B=t—BHLEFEZHEREEZHSHE
presented in the consolidated statement of changes of 2INEREMBRR2FERRS TR

equity of the consolidated financial statements.
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37. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN 37. RMEBARIZHEBRIER S

SUBSIDIARIES

On 8 March 2017, the Group acquired further 3.14%
equity interests of Fuzhou Huihao by way of increasing the
registered capital of Fuzhou Huihao from RMB80,000,000
to RMB91,500,000. A subsidiary of the Group agreed to
pay HK$12,000,000 for the increase capital of Fuzhou
Huihao. The Group recognised a decrease of non-controlling
interests and increase in other reserve of approximately
HK$6,996,000 and HK$6,996,000 respectively.

On 12 May 2015, the Group disposed 25% equity interests
of Fuzhou Huihao by way of increasing the registered capital
of Fuzhou Huihao from RMB60,000,000 to RMB80,000,000.
The non-controlling interests of Fuzhou Huihao agreed
to pay RMB20,000,000 for the increase capital of Fuzhou
Huihao. The Group recognised an increase of non-controlling
interests and decrease in other reserve of approximately
HK$63,409,000 and HK$29,208,000 respectively. As at 31
March 2016, the outstanding balance of non-controlling
interests contribution was RMBS8,670,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group further
acquired 0.51% equity interests of Huihao Sihai by way of
increasing the registered capital of RMB40,000,000 from
RMB15,856,000 to RMB55,856,000 of the capital of Huihao
Sihai.
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THE COMPANY
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

38. ELFIM B &

2017 2016
—E—tf —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T T
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBATRZRE 6,484 6,484
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERRZE 9 6
6,493 6,490
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables and deposits HihEWFIER RS 109 109
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUWR B~ AR 18 36,662 35,843
Cash and cash equivalents ReMhBESEEEH 11,057 21,394
47,828 57,346
Current liabilities mBAE
Amount due to the ultimate holding FES BRI A R FIE
company - 484
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTH B A R IE 6,662 6,671
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary S — R R K E A R KIE - 3
Accruals and other payables FEST & A & H th FE {3 FR IR 2,595 2,598
Convertible notes AR EE 83,369 =
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 80 =
92,706 9,756
Non-current liabilities FERBAR
Convertible notes AR EiE - 77,267
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEEE - 563
- 77,830
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY - continued

38. FRFIMBKAR—1&

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RE

HK$000 HK$'000

THET FH&T

Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(AK) SERSE (44,878) 47,590

Total assets less current liabilities EEHERTEBAR (38,385) 54,080

Net liabilities aERE (38,385) (23,750)
Capital and reserves BAXR A

Share capital % 2 6,484 6,484

Reserves (Note 39) & (MEE39) (44,869) (30,234)

Total equity EaeeE (38,385) (23,750)

The financial statement was approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2017 and signed

on its behalf by:

Chen Jinshan

Yung Ka Lai

Executive Director Executive Director
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39. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY 39. TR
Convertible
Share note Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
CE: 14
B iR MR REGE RitBER #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER TERT TERT TERT
As at 1 April 2015 W-E-RENB-H (7,653) - (19,101) (26,754)
Loss for the year FEBE - - (11,175) (11,175)
Total comprehensive loss FEZEFBAE
for the year - - (11,175) (11,175)
Issue of convertible notes BOURRER = 9,624 = 9,624
Deferred taxation of ARREEZELEHE
convertible notes - (1,929) - (1,929)
As at 31 March 2016 and RZBE-RF=ZA=+-HBR
1 April 2016 ZZ-~ENA-H (7,653) 7,695 (30,276) (30,234)
Loss for the year FEBR - = (14,635) (14,635)
Total comprehensive loss FEZERBAE
for the year - - (14,635) (14,635)
As at 31 March 2017 R-E—t£=ZHA=+—H (7,653) 7,695 (44,911) (44,869)
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 40. iR AiEFIET &

The Group operates as Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, this

contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits to fund the
benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes are to make the specified

contributions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2=Z—+F=A=1t—HIFE

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the
Board can grant options for the subscription of our shares
to the employees, managerial staff and senior employees
and those other persons that the Board considers that
they will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”) as described in the Share Option Scheme
in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate their
contribution to the Group. The maximum number of shares
that can be issued according to the Share Option Scheme
was 64,840,530 shares, which is equivalent to 10% of
the issued capital of the Company after completion of
the Listing on the Stock Exchange. The number of options
that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares
immediately after the completion of the Listing. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted
to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to
the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted
under the options to the substantial shareholders of the
Company or the independent non-executive Directors or any
of their respective associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. There is
no minimum period that the options must be held before
they become exercisable, and the options granted shall be
exercised within the period decided by the Board; however
no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have been
granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal
value of the share. Each grantee shall pay a consideration of
HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted. The Share Option
Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted and
shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from that
date.

41. IBBRIERTE

RZZE—Z=FAA=-1THA AQFEK
Wm—IEERESTE (TERESTED) B
BT RAKEES BEEAER
SRABEURBRESEMAEEER
AEEHIELCHAEBELERNZ
ZHMAT(2EHALT])RHBRE
URBALNBRG ERREELL TR
BEERFEEHREEELNERM R
EEREASTRITNRSROEKE R
64,840,530 iz 17 HHZE R A A B A HE AL
IR LETBREBHITRANI0% - RIE
BREFIAGRIEENBERERE T
BHEBBEEA LT ARERATS TR
BE10% " BRIFARAQATARERBRRERARE
SaitE BRITREBERERTSHEA
THROBEREM2EERTEREB
1% (AARARNEERR (EER LR
AN B IFPTESIHEEEZHE
AT (EXR LETHAA)REERSD) > R
BREBREIRFAQAATERRSE
VYHPBTEETIARESENEMBHEEA
THWRGEHFTEBEBADR TR %
TRMA0.1% - BB EBREATHE
RAFENRENE MEBENERESR
RESERENHBEANTE  BEBER
EIRREBBBI10FEITE  BRET
FEERQBRMNIBLEBEMERIAME
HREXRLMAINEHE; (b)RHRE
EREHAMAEERZ AEBIMEAH
HMEXRLAIIWFEHERTE ROBRBH
HEZRSE SARAZRERBRE
Z R AH1.008 T 2 B - IR BN
ERMNEREN EEZBET10FEHRE
ABARBER -
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41. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 41. ERR IRt B — 4R
Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no share BERMIBRESTEUR REE=-Z2—t
option have been granted during the year ended 31 March FZA=+—BLFEIREHEME
2017 (2016: Nil). RIE(ZF—RF &)

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 2. EXEABALES
TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial REEMBHRERAMEHMFEEN &
statements, the Group had entered into transactions with SECHBABATETTIRE EFR
related parties which, in the opinion of directors, were B RERGNREBEEGRRILARE
carried out at normal commercial terms and in the ordinary HEXBBRPET JITOT:

course of the Group’s business, as shown below:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration: () TETEABFH:
2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Short term employees benefits EHEERER 912 732
Provident fund contributions NEE MR 24 17
936 749
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 42. EXRABALX S &
TRANSACTIONS - continued

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEABMALTZXS
2017 2016
—E—tE | —B-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAETT
Licence fee paid to Hua Xia (Note) X FEEZHFTE (M) - 501

Rental expenses paid to the mother of X FEEBL T 2 BH 2
Ms. Yung Ka Lai HeMx 74 78

Rental expenses paid to Fujian Huihao 1% F @i Ei7EE&E

Pharmaceutical Chain Company BRARZEESAX
Limited 1,116 1,185
Note: Bt &
On 2 March 2017, Hua Xia ceased to be the ultimate holding A—E-—tF=ZA-HOHEHTEHE"
company of the Company upon the completion of the ZEETHERERRAZHEARERDF &
distribution in specie. For details, please refer to Hua Xia's EESHEERPA_ZT—LtF=A
announcements dated 2 March 2017, 27 January 2017 and 9 ZTHZE—tF-A=t+ttHR=E
November 2016. —RE+T—BANAZAfH
The Group had entered into a number of transactions with AEEHEHBERIVZERS  REBRAE
connected parties which, upon the listing of shares on the GRFrEmE RBELTRA ZEBE
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company FRAARRAZBEAL ZEXRZEH
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing B MBRETLTRRBETEES
transactions exempt from the independent shareholder’s YRRIFEZHRE - FHERCHRESS
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The details HEFERERS | NIEE-

information has been disclosed on Report of the Directors

“Continuing Connected Transactions”.
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43. PLEDGED OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were
pledged to bank to secure the Group's banking facilities in

43. FEIEH
RBEMEK THEEDERTRITUS
AEBBEW SRR BTRE

Note 32:
2017 2016
—Z—tf ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FERT
Pledged bank deposits (Note 28) 2R ITF R (MFEE28) 10,156 6,096
Prepaid lease payments (Note 19) FEASEERIE (MEE19) 9,664 10,623
Investment property (Note 20) REWE (KMFE20) 6,766 7,199
26,586 23,918

44. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of each reporting period, the Group were
committed to make the following future minimum lease
payments in respect of land and buildings rented under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

44. EEHERIE
FEMESKBA
REMEWF  REBIRE T T HES
S (RS T) SRS + i R B
EHNARBERSFRAENT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$’000

THET FE T

Within one year —FR 18,771 22,978
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZEF (BREEWME) 28,002 32,876
Over five years FFELE 3,727 -
50,500 55,854
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =—Z—+HF=A=1t—HIFE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 June 2017, the Company and the Convertible Notes
holders entered into the deed of amendment pursuant
to which the Convertible Notes would (a) fall due on 30
November 2017, being the new maturity date; (b) contain
an early redemption option which could be exercised by
the Company; (c) extend the outstanding payment interest
date; and (d) bear interest at 8% per annum for interest
accrued after 31 May 2017. For details, please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 1 June 2017.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest of Mingxi Group for a total consideration
of RMB125,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$140,954,000), the consideration was partially
settled. As at 31 March 2017, the consideration payable
was RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,726,000).

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 June
2017.

45.

46.

47.

BENERER
R=ZB—tFAA—R FATRTRR
BEFAATIBTRE it TRR
EE@BN-_F—tE+-A=+A (B
FEME) DB OWBETARD AT
FrREEEREE: OMRZLFE
NHAMSBER  RAONR=F—LER
A=+ BB 2R 8K REFE
BoAEEE H2HAARANA-F
—tEXA-BZAE.

EXHEREZH

FR AEBRBHIEE 2 IRE
RBEZEA ARE125,000,0007T (B
M #9140,954,0008 )  REB DD &
f-RZBE—tE=RA=+—H FEH
KEH AR#10,000,0007T (HERKY
11,726,000 7T ) °

BRETIZGESHMEBERR

REPBBRER-F-—LFAATR
FHESSHERRETE-
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Five Years Financial Summary

EFFHBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the

HEECTREERYBRRRBREZLSE
ERHENEYRFEC2XEREEREEZ

published audited financial statements and the prospectus, is set BESHINOT
out below:
RESULTS E |
For the year ended 31 March
BEZRA=1+-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-tE | ZE-RE ZE-1Ff C—EZ-0OF —E-=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TERx TERr TET FEx
Revenue k& 985,909 1,321,763 1,567,687 2,096,455 1,885,369
Cost of sales HERK (859,640)|  (1,175,635)  (1,407,842) (1,906,991) (1,721,210)
Gross profit EX 1] 126,269 146,128 159,845 189,464 164,159
Other revenue Hitl s 3,582 5,000 6,379 7,543 7,729
Other gain and loss, net HitWERER 38 990 2,530 (122) 746 1,078
Impairment loss on goodwill BERESE - = (785,169) = =
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-HNBARZEE (326) (772) - - -
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (95,226) (100,466) (90,590) (70,524) (61,397)
Administrative expenses THERX (45,223) (48,359) (46,854) (47,033) (46,802)
(Loss)/profit from operations BEXE (FR) /&7 (9,934) 4,061 (756,511) 80,196 64,767
Finance costs HHER (14,441) (16,365) (8,819) (6,015) (4,090)
(Loss)/profit before taxation B (ER) &% (24,375) (12,304) (765,330) 74,181 60,677
Taxation BiE (1,350) (1,158) (7,950) (25,113) (18,772)
(Loss)/profit for the year xEE (FR) /&% (25,725) (13,462) (773,280) 49,068 41,905
(Loss)/profit for the year UTATEEFEE
attributable to: (E#|) g%
Owners of the Company APAEEA (25,792) (13,802) (772,949) 48,920 41,763
Non-controlling interests FERER 67 340 (331) 148 142
(25,725) (13,462) (773,280) 49,068 41,905
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tf —E-RE —E-HfF —Z-|mEF —E-=F%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TEr TET TARr
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RERAR
Total assets BEE 560,339 646,798 655,340 1,432,719 1,390,923
Total liabilities naE (322,555) (356,274) (372,296) (386,996) (1,257,722)
Total equity EREE 237,784 290,524 283,044 1,045,723 133,201
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